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Chapter 01 - Corporate Profile / Summary of Implementation

1.1 Composition of the Election Commission

His Excellency the President under Article 103 (1) of the Constitution of the Democratic
Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, as amended by the Twentieth Amendment to the
Constitution, appointed the following members including the Chairman to the Second
Election Commission of Sri Lanka under the supervision of the Parliamentary council by the
letter dated 03.12.2020. Accordingly, the number of members of the Commission is five. The
quorum consists of three members. As per this appointment, the term of office of the Second
Election Commission commenced with the assumption of duties by the members of the
Commission on 10.12.2020.

The composition of the Election Commission as on 31.12.2022 is as follows.

e Mr. Nimal G. Punchihewa (Chairman)
e Mr. S.B. Diwarathne (Member)
e Mr. M.M. Mohamed (Member)
e Mr. K.P.P. Pathirana (Member)

e Mrs. P.S.M. Charles (Member) (from 28.10.2021)

(Mr. Jeevan Thyagaraja, who served as a member of the Election Commission from
10.12.2020 to 10.10.2021, resigned from his membership on 10.10.2021 to be sworn in as
Governor of the Northern Province on 11.10.2021. His Excellency the President appointed
Mrs. P.S.M. Charles as a Member of the Election Commission by letter dated 28.10.2021 to
fill the vacancy created by this.)

1.2 Vision and Mission of the Election Commission

VISION
“A DEMOCRATIC NATION THAT SAFEGUARDS UNIVERSAL FRANCHISE”
MISSION

“RAISE CRITICAL CONSCIOUSNESS AMONG ALL STAKEHOLDERS ENSURING
THE PROTECTION OF THE PEOPLE’S RIGHTS, AND CONDUCT FREE, FAIR AND

1



CREDIBLE ELECTIONS EFFICIENTLY AND EFFECTIVELY THAT SAFEGUARDS
THE PEOPLE’S SOVEREIGNTY AND UNIVERSAL FRANCHISE BASED ON
DEMOCRATIC PRINCIPLES”

1.2.1 Goals and Objectives

e All qualified citizens exercise their franchise fearlessly, freely, and confidentially in
elections conducted in a free and fair manner.

e All citizens realize that exercising their franchise is an inalienable right and get
involved in the election process actively.

e Equal and fair opportunities for all candidates during election periods.

e An all-inclusive, updated voter list is in place before every election.

e All citizens in the marginalized sectors of society engage in the electoral processes
confidently and adequately.

e The election process is administered competently and transparently.

e The needs of the stakeholders for data and information related to the election process

and the Election Commission are adequately fulfilled in a timely manner.

1.3 Powers, Duties And Functions of the Commission

In terms of Article 103(2) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri
Lanka, it is the core function of the Election Commission to conduct free and fair elections
and to hold referendums. In terms of Article 104 B (1) of the Constitution the Commission
shall exercise, perform and discharge all such powers, duties and functions conferred or
imposed on or assigned to —

(a) the Commission; or

(b) the Commissioner-General of Elections, by the Constitution, and by the law for
the time being relating to the election of the President, the election of Members of
Parliament, the election of members of Provincial Councils, the election of

members of Local Authorities and the conduct of Referenda.

Further, it is enshrined in the Constitution that the powers vested in the Commission in
connection with the electoral process also include the preparation and revision of registers of
electors for the purposes of such elections and Referenda and the conduct of such elections,

but are not limited to them. Also, Articles 104 B 1 to 104 B (5) provides how the
2



Commission should proceed and Articles 104 (C) and 104 (D) provides the protection
required in the exercise of powers and all necessary arrangements made for the deployment

of the police and security forces.
1.4  Organization Chart and Office Layout

Organizational chart including the Election Commission, the Commissioner General of
Elections, each division of the Elections Secretariat and the District Election Offices are
included in Note 01.

According to the above organizational chart, Elections Secretariat of the Election
Commission has established divisions as national elections, local authorities elections,
accounts, Admin, legal investigations and planning and internal audit and branches as
establishment, transport, procurement, information and communication technology and the
office layout has been prepared in such a way that the district election offices In all the

administrative districts are connected to each other.



Chapter 02 - Progress and Outlook

2.1 Meetings of the Election Commission

Generally, meetings of the Election Commission are held once a week, taking into account
the need for services. Thus, about 30 commission meetings were held in the year 2022, and it
is a pleasure to be able to maintain the administrative and general duties without neglecting
the need to be performed despite the fact that the covid 19 epidemic situation has not
completely ended.Making policy decisions in connection with commission papers submitted
by the Commission's Governance Division, National Elections Division, Local Government
Elections Division, Legal Investigation and Planning Division, Accounts Division and
various sub-divisions under those divisions, and issuing necessary guidelines and regulations
in order to maintain the constitutional and general administrative activities are done in these

meetings.

2.2 Registration of Electors

All eligible citizens have the right to participate in the governing power of the country and
the right to elect representatives for it without any particularity such as race, religion,
language, race, caste, education, property ownership, birth, place of birth, wealth, gender etc.
through universal suffrage. Universal suffrage has been guaranteed in accordance with
Article 3 of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka. It states that
“in the Republic of Sri Lanka sovereignty is in the People and is inalienable or transferred,
and that sovereignty includes the powers of government, fundamental rights and the

franchise”

Accordingly, the citizens of the country can exercise their right to vote in a poll to elect the
president, in a referendum in a parliamentary general election, in a provincial council election
and in a local authorities election. In order to vote in the aforementioned polls, it is

mandatory for citizens to be registered in the electoral register valid for the respective polls.

The Election Commission conducts these activities according to the provisions of the
Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka and the Registration of
Electors Act, No. 44 of 1980 and the Registration of Electors (Amendment) Act, No. 22 of
2021.



Basic Qualifications Required for Registration as an Elector in the Electoral Register
. Being a Sri Lankan citizen.

. Must have completed 18 years of age as on February 1, the date of eligibility for
registration in the electoral register. (Accordingly, those born on or before 31.01.2004

are eligible to register in the electoral register in 2022.)

. Having ordinary residence at the address applied for registration in the electoral

register.
Disqualifications for Registration in the Electoral Register as an Elector
. Having been declared by the court to be unsound mind under any law in force.

. Convicted by a court of law for an offense punishable with imprisonment for 02 years
and has been imprisoned for 06 months or more ora period of 07 years has not elapsed

since imprisonment.

. A period of 07 years has not eleapsed since having been convicted for bribery.

. Convicted by the court for violation of election laws.

. Having been convicted under the Public Bodies Prevention of Corruption Ordinance.

. Must be a person who is not subject to the disqualifications of disenfranchisement

mentioned under Article 89 of the Constitution, including the disqualifications

mentioned above.

2.2.1. Revision of Electoral Registers- 2021

The 2021 electoral register was completed at the district level and certified by the
Registering/Assistant Registering Officers in all electoral districts of the island on
07.01.2022. Action was taken to publish about it in the special gazette No. 2261/71 dated
01.07.2022 and to publish advertisements in newspapers in all three languages and it was
displayed on the official website of the Election Commission as well as placed for public

display in each District Election Office and all the Grama Niladhari Offices in the island.
The total number of registered electors in 2021 is 16,575,646.
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After preparing and certifying the annual electoral register, in order to act as stipulated in
Article 98 (8) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka the
number of Members of Parliament to be elected for each electoral district based on the
number of registered electors for each electoral district in the 2021 electoral register was
published in the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2266/53 dated 10.02.2022. The information is

given as Annexure 01.
2.2.1.1 Statistics related to 2021 Electoral Register

. Number of registered voters at each electoral district level (Note 02)

. Calculation of the number of MPs entitled to be elected for each electoral district in
accordance with Article 98 (8) of the Constitution - 2021 (Note 03)

. Submission of Claims and Objections under Section 14 of the Registration of Electors
Act and Claims and Objections Allowed (Note 04)

. Number of names removed from one address on detection of multiple registration in
each electoral district (Note 05)

. Number of people who submitted information about National Identity Cards (Note 06)

. Comparison of Registration of Electors 2020 - 2021 (Note 07)

. Details of Assistant Registering Officers who have certified the electoral register for

each electoral district (Note 08)

2.2.2. The Registration of Electors (Amendment) Act No. 22 of 2021.

The main purpose of this amendment act was to grant the right to vote through the
supplementary electoral registers as soon as the age of 18 is completed and to amend the

qualification date for enumeration of electors to be the first day of February.

% Basic amendments made to the Registration of Electors Act No. 44 of 1980

(Principal Charter) and special matters related thereto.

e  This Amendment Act was certified on October 13, 2021.

e Published as a supplement to the Government Gazette on 15 October 2021.

e That this amended act shall be effective from the 1st day of February 2022.

e The date on which a person must have completed his eighteenth birthday to be
eligible for the purpose of registration as an elector has been amended to be the first

day of February instead of the first day of June.



Instead of the existing first day of June, it has been revised as the first day of
February for inclusion or retention in the register of any electoral district, for the
qualifying address to be ordinarily resident and for other related decisions.

Instead of starting the revision work on or before the first day of June of each year, it
was revised as on the first day of February or before that day.

"Lists 'A" and 'B' shall be completed on or before the thirty-first day of January of the

following year" was amended to read "the thirtieth day of September™.

% Regarding Supplementary Electoral Register

K/

K/
°e

Within the period starting from the first day of February of a particular year and
ending on the thirty first day of May of the same year.

Within the period starting from the first day of June of a particular year and ending
on the thirtieth day of September of the same year.

Within the period commencing on the first day of October of a particular year and
ending on the thirty first day of January of the following year.

The amended act added that a person who completes eighteen years of age is eligible
to register his name as an elector and can apply to the Registering Officers with a
copy of the birth certificate or a copy of the national identity card.

It was also included in the amended act that supplementary lists should be prepared
by the Registering Officers that supplementary lists should be displayed, notices in
this regard should be published trilingually in the gazette and newspapers and claims
and objections can be made within 10 days from the date of publication of the
notices.

The amended Act deals with the coming into force and cancellation of the

supplementary registers.

The commission has been empowered to issue regulations necessary to decide or change
the difficulties arising in relation to the registration of electors, previously unforeseen
matters.

The definition of the term “electoral register” has been amended as follows.

"means the electoral register for a particular electoral district including certified

supplementary registers prepared under section 20A."

++ Dates of claim and objection in applications are revised.



% Making the necessary arrangements for the preparation of a supplementary electoral
registers that includes citizens who attains 18 years of age on a certain day during the
period from 01.06.2021 to 31.01.2022.

2.2.3. Revision of Electoral Registers - 2022

As amended by the Registration of Electors (Amendment) Act, No. 22 of 2021, the
enumeration of electors for the main register of 2022 began on or before February 01, 2022.
The Notice of the Election Commission in this regard was published in the Extraordinary
Gazette No. 2265/27 dated 01.02.2022 and in newspapers in all three languages.

2.2.3.1. Preparation of the Main Register According to the Revision Process of the
Electoral Register in the Year 2022

This work is carried out by the District Election Offices under the direction of the District
Registering Officer as per the instructions of the Election Commission and the enumeration
of electors in the field is done by Grama Niladharis as Enumerators.

Normally, in the revision of the electoral registers, an elector counting form (BC form) is
distributed to each household and a census is conducted, but due to the presence of the
Covid-19 epidemic situation at the beginning of 2022 too, the Election Commission decided
not to distribute the forms to each household to enumerate the electors in the revision of
electoral registers 2022 for the health protection of citizens and officials. Accordingly, a
special form called 2022/ER was introduced to enumerate the electors who are leaving the

2021 electoral register and newly included names only, as was done in the year 2021.

2.2.3.2. Procedure for New Registration due to Change of Residence.

If the ordinary residence has taken place on February 1, 2022, the opportunity has been
provided to register under the new address in the voter list of 2022, and for that, the eligible
persons should meet the Grama Niladhari of the Grama Niladhari Division related to their
current residence address, get a Form 2022/ER, complete it and submit it.There was an
opportunity to download this form from the website www.elections.gov.lk and it was
mandatory to write those details in the column where the registered details are to be
mentioned in this form.However, it was not a mandatory requirement to submit the letter
issued by the Grama Niladhari in relation to leaving the residence from the previous place of

residence.



2.2.3.3 The Manner of Which those Who Are Not Registered in the Electoral
Register in 2021 Should Register in 2022.

Those who are not registered in the electoral register in the year 2021 shall meet the Grama
Niladhari of the area of present residence and get a 2022/ER form or the form should be
downloaded from the website of the Election Commission www.elections.gov.lk and the duly
completed form shall be handed over to the Grama Niladhari, for registration in the year
2022.

2.2.3.4 Registration of Those Who Have Completed 18 Years of Age as on
01.02.2022 in the Electoral Register.

Persons born on or before 31.01.2004 were eligible for registration in the electoral register in
the year 2022 and accordingly, those who would complete the age of 18 years in the year
2022 had to complete a 2022/ER form and submit it to the Grama Niladhari along with a
copy of the birth certificate and national identity card.

The circular of instructions for the revision of electoral registers was issued to the District
Secretaries who are the District RegisteringOfficers and to District Deputy/Assistant
Commissioners of Elections who are Assistant Registering Officers before starting the
revision work.Advice was given on the legal and practical aspects of enumeration of electors
and the plan of dates for further activities up to the certification of the electoral register was

also given.

At the request of the Election Commission, the Secretary of the State Ministry of Home
Affairs instructed to suspend the transfer of Grama Niladharis during the field enumeration
period for the revision of the electoral register and to limit the office days of the village
officials during that period.Accordingly, Grama Niladharis were instructed to remain in the
office on Tuesday, Thursday and Saturday mornings of the week during the period from
01.02.2022 to 01.06.2022, subject to the performance of urgent and essential duties assigned
by all District Secretaries and all Divisional Secretaries, and to release the remaining days for
enumeration in the field. Also, instructions were given not to transfer Grama

Niladharisduring such declared periods.

With the commencement of revision work in February 2022, due to the slightly high level of
covid situation and Grama Niladhari union action based on Grama Niladhariallowance issues
and door-to-door distribution of revision notices, there was a severe disruption at the
beginning of 2022 revision.In this regard, the discussion held on 15.02.2022 under the
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chairmanship of the Secretary to the State Ministry of Home Affairs was attended by the
Additional Commissioner of Elections (National Elections) along with the Commissioner
General of Elections and the representatives of the Grama Niladhari Trade Unions.The
Grama Niladhari Union expressed agreement regarding the recommendations given by the
Election Commission to the Director General of Establishments regarding the Grama
Niladhari Allowances. Accordingly, the trade union representatives agreed to suspend trade
union actions subject to basic agreements regarding not doing door-to-door distribution and
confirmation regarding the 2022 revision and allowances.Due to the professional actions of
the Grama Niladharis at the very beginning of the counting of voters, there was an obstacle to

taking further action in the revision of the electoral register as planned.

6,500,000 advice notices regarding the revision were printed for distribution to every
household and due to the professional actions of the Grama Niladharis, they could not
accomplish the distribution of the notices.For this, the attention of the Commission was
focused on other alternative measures.The help of the Ministry of Education was sought to
inform their parents through the school students sought. The agreement of the Secretary to the
Ministry of Education for that has been communicated to provincial, zonal and divisional
heads of educationincludingall principals through circular No. ED/09/02/04/08/09 and dated
21.03.2022.Apart from that, the District Deputy/Assistant Commissioners of Elections were
informed to deliver the revision notice to the households through other alternative methods.

The computer data center of the Elections Secretariat was temporarily shut down from
04.04.2022 to 18.04.2022 due to the continuous failure of electricity supply that occurs
daily.The central server had to be deactivated once again from 05.09.2022 to 05.23.2022 due
to the chaotic situation in the country, imposition of curfew, difficulty in procuring fuel to run
the generator in the head office, etc. Due to this, there were severe obstacles in the
computerization of data to the district election staff. Due to the above-mentioned obstacles,
some of the planned works related to the revision had to be suspended and the revision

schedule had to be revised.

Though the acceptance of enumeration forms from Grama Niladharis was scheduled to be
completed on 11.03.2022 it had to be extended till June 2022.Also, the work planned for the
further inclusion of those who were not included in the electoral register, by sending the draft
lists of the names to be deleted ("A™) and the names to be included ("B") to the Grama

Niladhari offices, had to be abandoned.

Also, although it was initially planned to start the "A~ "B~ list exhibition from 17.05.2022, it

had to be postponed until 15.06.2022.
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2.2.3.5 Display of List of Names to be deleted (“A™’) and Names to be included (“B™)

in the electoral register: Submission of Claims and Objections

The "A" List of those whose names are included in the 2021 electoral register, who have
died or left their residence or who are not entitled on any other reason, i.e. the names of
those who are recommended to be removed in the year 2022 and "B" List which contain
the names of persons whose names are not included in the electoral register of 2021 but
who are entitled to newly include names in the electoral register of 2022 either on
completion of 18 years of age or coming of residence or for any other reason were
exhibited from 15.06.2022.In this regard, advertisements were published in the
extraordinary gazette No. 2284/19 dated 15.06.2022 and in newspapers trilingually.

2.2.3.6 Locations where the register (or part) of the year 2021 and “A” Lists and “B~

Lists” were exhibited are as follows.

Electoral Register and lists or parts thereof
kept for exhibition

Complete copy of the electoral register 2021 and
Each District Secretariat/ District | copies of the related “A” and “B” lists of the
Election Office year 2022in the concerned electoral district
(district)

Place of Exhibition

A copy of the 2021 electoral register showing all
polling districts of the concerned Divisional
Each Divisional Secretariat Secretariat Division and copies of the related
“A”~ and “B~ Listsof the year 2022

A copy of the 2021 electoral register section
showing all polling districts located within the
relevant local authority area and copies of the
related “A” and “B” lists of the year 2022

A copy of the 2021 electoral register section
showing all polling districts located in the
respective Grama Niladhari Division and copies
of the related “A™ and “B" lists of the year 2022

Each Local Authority

Each Grama Niladhari Office

It was notified that every person who was qualified to have his own name or someone else’s
name entered in the supplementary electoral register applicable to each electoral district but
whose name has been omitted from the electoral register and from the “B” List or inserted to
the “A” List and claims for himself or for someone else to have his or other person’s name
enteredin the supplementary electoral register, as the case may be, may apply substantially in
form “A” and “B” set out in the Schedule to the above Registration of Electors Act so as to

reach the registering officer of each electoral district within 4 weeks from 15 June 2022, the
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date of which this notice published in the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri
Lanka, i.e. on or before12.07.2022.

Any person whose name is included in the electoral register or the “A” List of the relevant
electroral district may object to the entry of his own name orthe name of any other person
appearing in such register or the “A” List or to get the name entered the said register. Every
such objection shall be made in duplicate substantially in form “C” set out in the schedule to
the above Act and submitted to the Registering Officer of the Election Office. Action was
taken to inform that all objections to the inclusion of the name in the register should be sent
to the Registering Officer of the District Elections Office within 10 days from 15 June 2022,
from the date of this notice in the Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka
i.e.on or before 12.07.2022.

Every objection to the entry of the name of any claimant in electoral register shall be made in
duplicate and shall be substantially in form “D” set out in the schedule to the above Act and
shall be made so as to reach the Registering Officer within 14 days from the date on which
the notice containing the names of claimants is exhibited at the District Election Office. This
notice was published in the District Election Offices on 01 July 2022 and 19 July 2022.

Facilities were provided for the collection of “A” and “B” forms required for submission of
claims and “C” and “D” forms required for submission of objections from district election

offices, divisional secretariats, local authorities and Grama Niladhari offices.

2.2.3.7 Conducting Claims and Objection Investigations and Dealing With Late

Requests.

Considering the number of "A" and "B" listed and the number of claims received at the
end of the claims acceptance period the Election Commission has issued instructions to
District Deputy/Assistant Commissioners of Elections to consider the requests of eligible
electors, whose claims have been missed in some manner, as Late claims and take action
to enroll them in the register in order to correct errors that may occur due to not going

door-to-door for enumeration of voters.

Due to the shortage of fuel, traffic difficulties, power outages, restriction on working days
of post officeand delays in mail delivery, restriction on office days, non-receipt of imprest
from the treasury, etc., there were obstacles in properly conducting claim and objection

investigations, which seriously affected the revision activities.
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However, due to the leadership of the District Deputy and Assistant Commissioners of
Elections and the dedication of the District Election Office Officers, many tasks related to
holding claim and objection investigations and delay requests have been able to be
brought to the final stage by 30.09.2022.

The Assistant Registering Officers were announced in the Extraordinary Gazette No.
2284/20 dated 15.06.2022 and we appreciate the support given by these officials to the
Deputy / Assistant Commissioner of the district in the investigation of claims and

objections.

The preparation of the electoral register for the year 2022 was completed at the district
level and certified by the Assistant Registration Officers in all the electoral districts of the
island on 31 October 2022.

Action was taken to publish it in the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2304/02 dated 31.10.2022
and in newspapers trilingually and also to display on the official website of the Election
Commission as well as to place for public display in the respective district election offices

and all the offices of the Grama Niladharid in the island.

2.2.3.8 Statistics related 2022 Electoral Register

e The numbers to be removed (“A” List) and to be included in 2022 (“B” List) in the
operative electoral register of each electoral district (2021) (Note 09)

e Number of registered voters at each electoral district level (Note 10)

e Annual calculation of the number of MPs entitled to be elected in each electoral
district in accordance with sub-Article 98 (8) of the Constitution — 2022 (Note 11)

e Submission of claims and objections under section 14 of the Registration of Electors
Act and claims and objections allowed (Note 12)

e Number of electors removed from one address due to detection of multiple
registration in each electoral district (Note 13)

e The number of people who submitted information about national identity cards (Note
14)

e Elector Registration Comparison 2021 — 2022 (Note 15)

e Details of Assistant Registering Officers who have certified the electoral register for

each electoral district (Note 16)

The total number of registered electors in the year 2022 list is 16,692,397.
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2.2.3.9 Comparative Statistics

Comparative statistics on the following matters of elector registration for the past few years

are attached.

« Comparative statistics on the number of registered electors according to polling
divisions 2013 — 2022 (Note 17)

» Comparative statistics on the percentage of the number of electors who submitted
their National 1D card details during the revisions of electoral registers 2013 — 2022
(Note 18)

« Comparison of registered electors in each year and the percentage of increase and
increase relative to the previous year 2010 — 2022 (Note 19)

« Comparative statistics of the number of members of Parliament to be elected for each
electoral district under Article 98(8) of the Constitution 2013-2022 (Note 20)

2.2.4.Preparation of Additional Supplementary Electoral Register for the Year 2022.

In terms of Section 10 of the Registration of Electors (Amendment) Act No. 22 of 2021, a
supplementary electoral register should be prepared that includes those who will attain the
age of 18 years on a certain date during the period from 01 June 2021 to 31 January
2022.Although the revised act should be implemented from February 1, 2022, according to
the provisions of the main charter, the work of collecting the information of the citizens who

should be included in this list was started in December 2021.

Accordingly, the information of the persons belonging to this age group was obtained from
the Department for Registration of Persons and forwarded to the District Election Offices.
The District Deputy/ Assistant Commissioners of Election were instructed to separate the
information according to the Grama Niladhari divisions and send it to the Grama Niladharis

along with the YC forms introduced for enumeration of electors.

A preliminary introduction about the method of preparation of supplementary lists was also
communicated in writing to all the recognized political party secretaries. It was also requested
to inform party activists and representatives in this regard. This was also explained in the

meetings held with the party secretaries at the Elections Secretariat.
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Although the Commission had planned to hold the exhibition of the supplementary list from
01.02.2022, the Commission decided in January 2022 to postpone it to 20.04.2022 on the
following grounds.

Taking into consideration that the enumeration officers may include more people in the
enumeration related to the revision of the year 2022 as those who are eligible to be included

in this additional supplement are eligible to be included in the 2022 main register.

Extending the term of office of the local authorities till 19.03.2023 by the extraordinary
gazette number 2262/8 of the Minister of Public Services, Provincial Councils and Local
Government dated 10.01.2022.

Absence of a clear law for the holding of the provincial council election.

All the obstacles described above in the preparation of the main list also affected the
preparation of the 2022 additional supplementary list. Facing all those obstacles, the Election
Commission decided that the exhibition of the supplementary list should be done from
15.06.2022.

It was announced on June 15, 2022 in the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2284/19 dated
15.06.2022 and by newspaper notices that the Registering Officers of each electoral district
have completed their preparation of supplementary lists and that the lists related to each
authority would be displayed in District Secretariat/Election Offices, Divisional Secretariats,
Local Authorities and Grama Niladharis' Offices from 15.06.2022.

It was notified that every person who was qualified to have his own name or someone else’s
name entered in the supplementary electoral register applicable to each electoral district in
terms of the Registration of Electors Act but whose name has been omitted from the
supplementary listand claims for himself or for someone else to have his or other person’s
name entered in the supplementary electoral register, as the case may be, may apply
substantially in form “A” and “B” set out in the Schedule to the above Registration of
Electors Act or by a YC form introduced for enumeration of electors together with a copy of
the birth certificate or National Identity Card so as to reach the registering officer of each

electoral district within 10 days from 15 June 2022.
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Any person whose name is included in the supplementary register of the relevant electroral
district may object to the entry of his own name orthe name of any other person appearing in
such register. Every such objection shall be made in duplicate substantially in form “C” set
out in the schedule to the above Act and submitted to the Registering Officer of the Election
Office. All objections relating to the inclusion of the name in the register should be sent to the
Registering Officer of the District Elections Office within 10 days from 15 June 2022.

Every objection to the entry of the name of any claimant in supplementary register shall be
made in duplicate substantially in form “D” set out in the schedule to the above Act and shall
be submitted so as to reach the Registering Officer within 7 days from the date on which the
notice containing the names of claimants is exhibited at the District Election Office. This

notice was published in the District Election Offices on 01 July 2022.

Forms “A” “B” required for submission of claims and Forms “C” “D” required for submitting
objections were facilitated to be obtained from District Election Offices or Divisional

Secretariats or Local Authorities or Grama Niladhari Offices.

Thereafter investigations were conducted regarding the claims received. Considering the
number of requests received until the certification of the registers the District
Deputy/Assistant Commissioners of Elections were instructed to enroll theeleigible persons
in the supplementary register in order to correct errors that may occur due to not going door-

to-door for enumeration of voters in 2022.

After completing the claim enquiries, the additional supplementary register for the period
from 01.06.2021 to 31.01.2022 was certified on 31st August 2022. In this regard, it was
announced through the Gazette Notice 2295/11 dated 31.08.2022 and Newspaper Notice.
The total number of registered electors in this supplementary register is 142,537 and the

number of registered votes according to each electoral district/district is included as Note 21.

After each electoral register is certified, the number of MPs entitled to be elected for each
electoral district must be determined based on the number of votes in the current operative
electoral register in accordance with Articles 97 and 98 of the Constitution. Accordingly,
after certifying the supplementary registers, the number of members to be elected have been

entered as Note 22.

After certifying this supplementary register, there was no change in the previously
determined number of MPs for each electoral district.
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2.2.5 Preparation of Supplementary Electoral Register 2022 (1)

In terms of the Enumeration of Electors aended act, a supplementary electoral regsiter must
be prepared that includes those who will attain the age of 18 years on any date during the
period from 01 February 2022 to 31 May 2022.

The enumeration related to this supplementary register was done simultaneously with the
enumeration of the main register on 01.02.2022 and as mentioned above, the difficulties
encountered in the enumeration and the procedures followed to avoid the difficulties
encountered in the enumeration were also followed for the preparation of this list. Regarding
the display of supplementary lists, submission of claims and objections, the notice was
published in the Gazette 2287/11 and 2022.07.05 and in newspapers.

Subject to the above events, how the preparation of supplementary list was planned and the

manner in which it was implemented as of 30.09.2022 is shown below.

Activity Scheduled Period Implemented Period
Display of supplementary | 02.05.2022- 11.05.2022 | 05.07.2022 —-14.07.2022
lists
Acceptance of claims and | 02.05.2022- 11.05.2022 | 05.07.2022 -14.07.2022
objections
Date for display of received | 17.05.2022 19.07.2022
claims and objection lists
Last date for submission of | 23.05.2022 25.07.2022
claims and objections

After that, investigations were conducted regarding the claims received. Also, all district
Deputy/Assistant Commissioners of Elections were informed to pay attention to the requests
received up to the certification of the register and include the qualified persons in the
supplementary register to correct the errors that may occur due to not going door to door

enumeration of electors in the year 2022.

In several cases, the Department for Registration of Persons obtained the details of those who
would have attained 18 years during this period and the details were sent to the Grama
Niladharis by the District Deputy/Assistant Commissioners of Elections. In addition, letters

were sent to the private homes of each person to register.
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Although it was initially planned to certify this supplementary register on 15.06.2022, due to
the problems described above and with the aim of including the maximum number of electors
in the supplementary register, the Commission has decided to certify it on 08.11.2022. In this
regard, it was announced through the Gazette Notice No. 2305/10 dated 08.11.2022 and
through the Newspaper Notice. The total number of electors registered in this supplementary
register is 62,732 and the statistics which show the number in the supplementary lists
according to each electoral district/district, the number of claims received and allowed, the

number of registered voters, are shown in Note 23.

After each electoral register is certified, the number of MPs entitled to be elected for each
electoral district must be determined based on the number of votes in the current valid
electoral register in accordance with Articles 97 and 98 of the Constitution. Accordingly, the
note for calculating the number of members to be elected after the certification of

supplementary registers is mentioned in Note 24.

2.2.6 Preparation of Supplementary Electoral Register 2022 (2)

According to the Registration of Electors Amended Act, a supplementary electoral register
must be prepared including those who will attain the age of 18 years on any date during the
period from 01 June 2022 to 30 September 2022.

The enumeration related to this supplementary register was done concurrently with the
enumeration of the main register on 01.02.2022 and as mentioned above the difficulties
encountered in the enumeration and the procedure followed to avoid them were also followed
for the preparation of this register. Notice regarding display of supplementary lists,
submission of claims and objections was published in the Gazette No. 2295/12 dated

31.08.2022 and in newspapers in all three languages.

Subject to the above events, how the preparation of supplementary list was planned and the

manner in which it was implemented as of 30.09.2022 is shown below.

Activity Scheduled Period Implemented Period
Display of supplementary lists | 05.07.2022 —14.07.2022 | 31.08.2022-09.09.2022

Acceptance of claims and | 05.07.2022 -14.07.2022 | 31.08.2022— 09.09.2022

objections

Date for display of received | 19.07.2022 16.09.2022
claims and objection lists

Last date for submission of | 25.07.2022 22.09.2022

claims and objections

18



After that, investigations were conducted regarding the claims received. Also, all district
Deputy/Assistant Commissioners of Elections were informed to pay attention to the requests
received up to the certification of the register and include the qualified persons in the
supplementary register to correct the errors that may occur due to not going door to door

enumeration of electors in the year 2022.

On several occasions, the Department for Registration of Persons obtained the details of
persons who would attain 18 years of age during this period and according to the information,
the Election Commission observed that there were persons who need to be registered further,
and the details were sent to the Grama Niladharis by the District Deputy/Assistant

Commissioners.

Although it was initially planned to certify this supplementary list on 01.10.2022, due to the
problems described above and with the aim of including the maximum number of electors in
the supplementary register, the Commission has decided to certify this supplementary list on
15.11.2022. In this regard, it was announced through the Gazette Notice No. 2306/21 dated
15.11.2022 and through the Newspaper Notice. The total number of electors registered in this
supplementary register is 56,212 and the statistics which show the number in the
supplementary lists according to each electoral district/district, the number of claims received

and allowed, the number of registered voters, are shown in Note 25.

After each electoral register is certified, the number of MPs entitled to be elected for each
electoral district must be determined based on the number of votes in the current valid
electoral register in accordance with Articles 97 and 98 of the Constitution. Accordingly, the
note for calculating the number of members to be elected after certifying the supplementary

registers is mentioned in Note 26.

2.2.7 Preparation of Supplementary Electoral Register 2022 (3)

According to the Registration of Electors Amended Act, a supplementary electoral register
must be prepared including those who will attain the age of 18 years on any date during the
period from 01 October 2022 to 31 January 2023.

The enumeration related to this supplementary register was done concurrently with the
enumeration of the main register on 01.02.2022

The difficulties in enumeration of electors also affected the preparation of this supplementary

regsiter.
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The activities carried out for the preparation of the additional supplementary register were

also followed for the preparation of this supplementary register.

Action was taken to publish the notice in the gazette No: 2308/18 dated 30.11.2022 and in the
newspapers trilingually regarding the display of the supplementary lists, claims and

objections.

The following is how the preparation of this supplementary register was planned and

executed subject to the above events.

Activity Scheduled Period Implemented Period
Display of supplementary lists 01.11.2022 -10.11.2022 | 30.11.2022-09.12.2022

Acceptance of claims and | 01.11.2022 -10.11.2022 | 30.11.2022-09.12.2022

objections

Date for display of received 15.11.2022 14.12.2022
claims and objection lists

Last date for submission of 21.11.2022 20.12.2022

claims and objections

After that, enquiries were conducted regarding the claims received. Also, all the district
Deputy / Assistant Commissioners of Elections were informed to pay attention to the requests
received up to the certification of the registers and include the qualified persons in the
supplementary registerin order to correct the errors that may occur due to not conducting door

to door enumeration of the electors in the year 2022.

On several occasions, the Departmentfor Registration of Persons obtained the details of
persons who would attain 18 years of age during this period and action was taken to send the
details to the Grama Niladharis by the District Deputy/Assistant Commissioners. In addition,

letters were sent to each person informing them to take action to register.

Claim enquiries had started by 31.12.2022. All District Deputy/Assistant Commissioners
have been informed to make arrangements for certification of this supplementary list on

01.02.2023 as planned at the beginning.

2.2.8 Preparation of Supplementary Electoral Registers 2023 (1), 2023 (2) and 2023 (3)

The Election Commission has decided to collect the details of the eligible persons for the
supplementary electoral register 2023 (1) to be prepared from 01.02.2023 to 31.05.2023,
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supplementary electoral register 2023 (2) to be prepared from 01.06.2023 to 30.09.2023 and
supplementary electoral register 2023 (3) to be prepared from 01.10.2023 to 31.01.2024
along with the revision of the electoral register 2022.

The number of people, who applied for registration in the 2023(1), 2023(2) and 2023(3)
supplementary electoral register by the end of the year 2022, is shown below.

. Number of young citizens who had
Supplementary Register applied
(1)2023 23106
(2)2023 23299
(3)2023 21982

2.2.9 Introduction of IT for Elector Registration Process

The online facility was introduced to register in the electoral register Along with the revision
of the electoral register 2021 and it was implemented in the year 2022 as well.

Also, the facility of getting a statement containing electoral register information for all
citizens introduced in the year 2021 on their mobile phone/computer was also implemented in

the same way this year.

For the process of enrolling students in schools for the first year, an e-service was made
available to the zonal/division education offices free of charge and to the schools at a

concessional fee.

The role of the Information and Communication Technology Division for the revision of the

electoral register has been mentioned in this report.

2.2.10 Implementation of Telephone Assistance Service for Electoral Register

The telephone support services were operational from 20.06.2022 to 30.07.2022 to check the
registration of the name in the voter list/ apply for inclusion of the name in the voter list and

get information for other rectification activities.
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2.2.11 Informing the Public about the Revision through SMS.
With the commencement of electoral register revision, the following short message was sent

to the mobile and CDMA telephone operators of Dialog, Mobitel, Airtel and Hutchison under
the heading "Elections™ on 01.02.2022 without charging any money.

SMS February 01

Sinhala

2021 #53¢ eCamed DO 0B owd E8mw edn e BIOO gDaLHO 8O
2022 &3¢ 0F5r0 5@ e BIOO gp® BES d®wrsis.

Singlish

2021 Chanda Lekanaye namanomathinam ho lipinaya wenas kireemata awashyanam
pamanak 2022Chanda Lekanayata nama athulath kireemata Grama Niladari

wimasanna.

Tamil

2021 GxmmBI @Lmnisd Guwy Eevenevlwleille DLV (PHAIFlenU  LOTBBINISHBE
Capemeuuimuiler LOTSHHTID 2022 GBIy @Lmidev Quuwisny
o | GFHaH0ETeTaNSHBHTH ST Dsvielsvsn] alFmiledaeaib.

Tanglish

2021 terunar idapil peyar illeyenin alladu mugawariei matruwadaku teveiyain
mattiram 2022 terunar idapil peyarai utsertukolwadakagal grama aluwalari

visarikaum.
English

Contact Grama Niladhari to include the name in the 2022 Electoral Register, only if

your name isn’t in the 2021 Register or if you want to change the address.

e Regarding the period of exhibition of 'A" and 'B' lists and receipt of claims and
objections, the following short message was sent to Dialog, Mobitel, Airtel and
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Hutchison mobile and CDMA phone subscribers on 20.06.2022 without charge

under the heading "Elections”.

SMS June 20

Sinhala

2022 dxfe  eCamed Qed O BHedgd, O Beiewnsi owd
www.elections.gov.lk dEs3m. © myFH® ¢ 120 exc 0112860031 ¢@nxsis.

Singlish

2022 Chanda Lekanaye obe nama thibedeyi Grama Niladarigen ho
www.elections.gov.lk web adaviyen balanna. Nama nethnam July 12ta pera

0112860031 amathanna.

Tamil
2022  oyemngedt  GH@mBI  RLmTled 2 misengd  GQUWT 2 eienHTOeueRl,  SFTID
SNVl b Sieveudk  Wwww.elections.gov.lk unjésen. QU Esvensouimu e

wemev 12 @m@& (ween] 0112860032 SieWLP&HH)LD.
Tanglish

2022 aandin terunar idapil ungal peyar ulladawena, Grama aluwalaridam alladu
www.elections.gov.lk parkavum. Peyar illayain July 12ku munnar 0112860032

alaikaum.

English

Contact Grama Niladari or browse www.elections.gov.lk to ensure that your name is

on the electoral register 2022. If isn’t, inform 0112860034 before 12t July.

Due to the crisis situation in the country, a decrease in the number of electors in urban, semi-
urban, estate-related and rural areas was observed in the enumeration of voters related to the
year 2022 compared to the revisions of the electoral registers in previous years. Also,
according to the Registration of Electors (Amendment) Act No. 22 of 2021, legal provisions
have been given to grant the right to vote as soon as the age of 18 is attained, and there was a
lack of citizens who should be included in the supplementary registers. Therefore, in order to
inform the citizens about the registration in the electoral register, a request was made from

the Sri Lanka Telecommunication Regulatory Commission to send an SMS message as
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follows on 13.10.2022 under the heading "Elections” to Mobitel, Dialog, Airtel and

Hutchinson telephone subscribers and for that the opportunity was given by those institutions.

SMS October 13

Sinhala
2005.02.010 oo cosl gw &dx¥c eGamed »O gFad @® Beleosy [

www.elections.gov.lk dEEIm. 5O sy Fm® 8.190 066 G® BEad v O=I.

Singlish
2005.02.01 ta pera upan aya Chanda Lekanaye nama athdeyi Grama

Niladarigen/ www.elections.gov.lk balanna. Nama nethnam Oct.19ta pera GN

hamuwanna.

Tamil
2005.02.01 &@ (e  UBHEHTy, eurdhsTeny  @LTled o miseT  Guw

o eiteneTOeue ST Ssveuevfl b /www.elections.gov.lk@ev LyGeudfldba oinibg

Qameiteneyd. QUWT RevemeowiTuiledr @HCHTUT 19 SBE (P& HITD  DIVIGUELED]T
Flb&HHBH6LD.

Tanglish
2005.02.01 ku mun pirandor, vakkalar idapil wungal peyar ulladavena

GN/www.elections.gov.lk il arindu kollaum. Peyar illaiyain October 19 ku mun GN

ai sandikaum.

English
Contact GN/browse www.elections.gov.lk those who were born before 2005.02.01 to

ensure your name is in the electoral register. If not, meet GN before 19th Oct.

The people were greatly informed by these text messages. In this regard, we express our
utmost gratitude to Dialog Media Network, Mobitel Pvt., Bharti Airtel Lanka and
Hutchison Telecommunication Sri Lanka. We also express our gratitude to the Secretary
to the President, the Secretary to the Prime Minister and the Sri Lanka

Telecommunications Regulatory Commission for their coordination.
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2.2.12 Publication of Newspaper Advertisements

The following newspaper advertisements were published trilingually from 30.03.2022 to

10.04.2022 for registration in the main list and supplementary lists and to inform the public.

2022 625388 w253 @ensy ©R080®

2022 8ww wews  SuIcBSwsy
oz’ o 2022.02.01 8» &6®» =m»o
.5 ®  emO®  owsl 0 ed
gzmaBen) 0acd® 8¢ ernemed.

2021 d8zed Ewiesddd @3B
5H® 09d202] dSsed Bwind.d E8mw
woeddmw »E @n »®; 2004.01.31 end
50 eud oy monEInsy Bwirsdd B®
E®;

8
18 388w e Bwes s 420 DS
388302 90eEn 8= sx¥e DEw®
CHOB®  wewo  afog 16 - 18
(2006.01.310 o6 o) yoOBesy
B 02388 BO® t3¢wr ©® B3 eowd Sedf
OBDS e 8wrEe D@,

OBDC e 6293857 3D
011-2868441 / www.elections.gov.lk

Enumeration of Electors 2022 begins

The enumeration of electors for the year 2022
has commenced on 01.02.2022. Enumeration
forms are not distributed to every household.

Contact the Niladharior District

Elections Office

Grama

if not registered in the year 2021 or if the
address of the registration in the year 2021 need
to be amended,; for registration of persons born
on or before 31.01.2004;

and
to register the citizens aged 16 - 18 years (born
before 31.01.2006)
for_obtaining voting right as soon_as
attaining the age of 18 by supplementary
registers prepared every 4 months

Election Commission
011-2868441 / www.elections.aov.lk
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UTDISSLILL BeTendH.  SimaibH BB EHHESLD
B0 BB LILg 6)BIH 61T alpCwITal sl
LOTLLT&I.

2021 sb Semtged  Ugley  GaFuiwtiuL g mULesr
SeoeugH 2021 b SuemTged  Ugley G mLument
wpsaufluilsd A ([hBHBHBIHEDET Gopesmeiem
Geuemrplomuiesr  ;  2004.01.31  SeLeVH DSBS
(psirenry Umbs BLIT&BED6TT ugley
CFULIHIOHTETIHMBHTH

LoBMILD

QUBDBIHOBT6ITEUSHBHTH 16 - 18
QIISHIBEHHHMLLIULL  (2006.01.31 @BE& (Wsreury
LIBhs) LrenemsemenLl ugle) Ceuig)
O®melTeUSHBHTH Srmp SIVIGUEVEN] SI6L6VG]

wreI' L  CHTHLH6ET  DIVIOIVHHMS
Qs TeienaLd.

OHmLiL

BoHIDHeb UMMESHW
011-2868441 / www.elections.gov.lk
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Newspaper Medium Date of Publication
Dinamina Sinhala | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Thinakaran Tamil | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Daily News English March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Silumina Sinhala | April 03/ April 10
zflalllrr;?rll(:;;l:ri Tamil April 03/ April 10
Sunday Observer English | April 03/ April 10
Divaina Sinhala | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Island English March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Sunday Divaina Sinhala | April 03/ April 10
Sunday Island English | April 03/ April 10
Nawaliya Sinhala | April 04
Vidusara Sinhala | April 06
Lankadeepa Sinhala | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Ada Sinhala | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
i‘;ﬁﬁggeepa Sinhala | i1 03/ April 10
Mawbima Sinhala | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Ceylon Today English March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Sunday Mawbima Sinhala | April 03/ April 10
%ﬁi_?,y Ceylon English April 03/ April 10
Aruna Daily Sinhala | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Thamilan Daily Tamil | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
The Morning Daily | English | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Weekend Aruna Sinhala | April 03/ April 10
Yr\;lzemkielr;i Tamil April 03/ April 10
g\i;edl;eynlc\i/l E?I;ng English April 03/ April 10
I\Dﬁagr;;inzvomen’s Sinhala | April 06
Thinakkural Tamil | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
sunday Tamil 1 A okl 03/ April 10
Veerakesari Tamil | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
f,‘:;f:gesari Tamil 1 x 5ril 03/ April 10
Yarl Thinakkural Tamil | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Junday Yarl Tamil | bril 03/ April 10
Udayan Tamil | March 30/ April 01/ April 04/ April 06/ April 08
Sunday Udayan Tamil | April 03
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The details of the newspapers, media and the dates of publication of the above advertisements
are given below.

The following notices were published on 20, 21, 23 and 25.10.2022 with the aim of preparing
an electoral register so that no elector is left behind.

Advertisement published in newspapers on 20, 21 and 23.10.2022.

2022 suadsmpeni g L duq asngaled

@ s |

B Hesd el ;
www elections.gov Ik L& ;
@28 5% QR exfne Scan £358 98

LSO D,

Ronn mygyseafe i aisrdliiugggn s
www.elections.gov.lk s ;

W sreswL i@ QR Aaufc e Scan

Glanisusgni & w085 S amaver upigapd

2005.02.0]1 3nT eud cost ge 98 THS wpebswd (Spganclaaia Quud
o

2022.1025 220 ead @@ 2

ook afeafdaay

\DQUQG‘L‘ DTS (S (1P |

Ensure whether the name 15 1n the
Electoral Register Draft 2022

By asking the Grama Niladhar,
Through www,clections.gov 1k;

Scanning the QR code here.

If the name of those bom before 01 02 2005 are not in the
drafl, enquire the Grama Niladban before 25102022

Election Commission

Advertisement published in newspapers on 25.10.2022.

2022 sungsmeny @ miiL) susngalled

Gluwid @ osSermsrGleuss

& Bl DeBeds ;
www.elections.gov.lk &Y ;
@®8 oF QR oxine Scan R88 8=

OB WD

Bame Ngyudiw afFfUusspie s
www.elections.gov.lk oer_ns ;

@ =@ srewiu®is QR @fefc s Scan

Qaviaisgnre wan sl a0 s nairer (1ol

2005.02.01 8000 26 cust a6 mE TN 20080201 gy B3, ysheni Snisiinsisis Cuer
2¢® BRed @ BEll Seustn

@ sneval TuR o ;i'.;s'ri‘n o sggenc W Rome ygreaasd
aflanfidsayud

Caize gyemems @1

Ensure whether the name is in the

Electoral Register Draft 2022

By asking the Grama Niladhari;
Through www.clections.gov. 1k;
Scanning the QR code here.

[f the name of those born before 01.02.2005 are not in the
draft, enquire vour Grama Niladhan today

Election Commission
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The details of the newspapers in which the notice referred to in paragraphs 18.4 and 18.5

above are published are given below.

Newspaper Medium Date of Publication
Dinamina Sinhala | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 / 25.10.2022
Thinakaran Tamil | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 / 25.10.2022
Daily News English | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 /25.10.2022
Silumina Sinhala | 23.10.2022
Sunday Observer English | 23.10.2022
Divaina Sinhala |20.10.2022/21.10.2022 /25.10.2022
Island English | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 / 25.10.2022
Sunday Divaina Sinhala | 23.10.2022
Sunday Island English | 23.10.2022
Lankadeepa Sinhala |20.10.2022/21.10.2022/25.10.2022
Daily Mirror English | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 / 25.10.2022
Sunday Lankadeepa Sinhala | 23.10.2022
Sunday Times English | 23.10.2022
Mawbima Sinhala | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 / 25.10.2022
Ceylon Today English | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 /25.10.2022
Sunday Mawbima Sinhala | 23.10.2022
Sunday Ceylon Today English | 23.10.2022
Aruna Daily Sinhala |20.10.2022/21.10.2022 /25.10.2022
The Morning Daily English | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 /25.10.2022
Weekend Aruna Sinhala | 23.10.2022
The Sunday Morning English | 23.10.2022
Thinakkural Tamil | 20.10.2022/21.10.2022 / 25.10.2022
Sunday Thinakkural Tamil | 23.10.2022
Veerakesari Tamil | 20.10.2022 /21.10.2022 / 25.10.2022
Sunday Veerakesari Tamil | 23.10.2022
Yarl Thinakkural Tamil | 20.10.2022 /21.10.2022 / 25.10.2022
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2.2.13 Issuance of Electoral Register Extracts.

A person who is registered in the electoral register had to go to the district election office of
his registered address and submit an application to get a certified copy of the electoral
register of the previous year. Realizing that this system is not public-friendly, the Information
Technology Division of the Election Commission prepared a system to provide a certified
extract of the electoral register to a registered person in any district who submits an
application to any district election office as per the instructions given by the Election

Commission.

Accordingly, the relevant facility has been provided to the public through a computer
software introduced by the Information Technology Division and at present this function is

being implemented in every district election office.

The report further mentions the programs and improvements introduced by the Information
and Communication Technology Division to provide certified electoral register information
to the public.

2.3.  Filling up of Vacancies in the Membership of Parliament.

Mr. S. Jagath Samarawickrama was elected to fill the vacancy caused by the death of Mr.
Amarakirthi Athukorala who was elected as a Member of Parliament of Polonnaruwa
Electoral District No. 18 and it was announced in the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2280/22
dated 2022.05.17.

Mr. Kulappu Arachchige Dhammika Perera was elected for the vacancy caused by the
resignation of Mr. Basil Rohana Rajapaksa who was elected by the Sri Lanka
PodujanaPeramuna Party under Article 99 G (National List) of the Constitution and it was
announced by the Extraordinary Gzette No. 2283/39 dated 10.06.2022.

Mr. Vajira Abeywardena was elected for the vacancy caused by resignationof Mr. Ranil
Wickramasinghe from his office as Member of Parliament due to the appointment of him as
the President of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, who was elected by the
United National Party under Article 99 A (National List) of the Constitution and it was
announced through the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2289/42 dated 22.07.2022.
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2.4 Provincial Council Election

Although the amendment to the Provincial Councils Elections Act No. 2 of 1988 and the
Amendment Act No. 17 of 2017 were passed, due to the fact that the report on the
delimitation prepared by the provincial councils for conducting the provincial council
elections under the ward system has not been passed in the parliament, it has not been
possible to hold the provincial councils elections in the year 2022.

All provincial councils whose term of office has ended are under the control of their

respective governors.

2.5 Local Authorities Elections
2.5.1 Local Authorities Elections held in 2018

The report prepared by the Election Commission in relation to the local authoritieselections
held on February 2, 2018 was prepared and completed by the latter half of the year 2022.
Accordingly, the Sinhala version of Volume 1 of the report was completed and prepared as a
book. Volume Il of the report containing the results has been prepared and sent to the

Government Press for printing.

The term of office of the members elected in the local authorities elections held in 2018
ended on 20.03.2022 and by the Gazette Notification No. 2262/08 dated 10.01.2022 the
Minister of Public Services, Provincial Councils and Local Government extended the term of
office of the members of each Municipal Council, Urban Council, and each Pradeshiya Sabha
by one year till 19 March 2023 under section 10(2)(b) of the Municipal Councils Ordinance
(Chapter 252), under section 10(2)(b) of the Urban Councils Ordinance (Chapter 255) and
under section 5(2)(b) of the Pradeshiya Sabha Act No. 15 of 1987, respectively.

2.5.2 Filling up of Membership Vacancies in Local Authorities

Membership vacancies occurred due to the death, resignation, loss of party membership, non-
attendance of council meetings for a specified period of time without permission,
appointment as chairman, the defeat of the budget and removal by the governor, and the legal
process of filling those membership vacancies is conducted by the Local Authorities

Division.
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Accordingly, from the beginning of the first quarter of 2022 to the end of the fourth quarter of
2022, actions have been taken to appoint members for 252 membership vacancies in local

government bodies and information about that is included in Note 27.

The reasons caused for the vacancies in local authorities posts are as follows.

Serial | The reason for the vacancy Number of
No. vacancies

1 Not attending council meetings without permission 24

2 Removal by the Governor 2

3 Resignation 95

4 Loss of party membership 82

5 Death 44

6 Appointment as Chairman 4

7 Defeat the budget 1

2.5.3. Preparation for Local Authorities Elections 2023

As the term of office of the local authorities extended by one year ends on 19 March 2023,
the Election Commission started the necessary activities for conducting the local authorities
elections in accordance with Section 25 of the Local Authorities Elections Ordinance
(Chapter 262).

The following activities were carried out by the Local Authorities Elections Division on

31.12.2022 in relation to the holding of the local authorities elections in the year 2023.

2.5.4 Gazette Notices Issued for Local Authorities Elections 2023

The gazette notices issued in relation to the 2023 local authorities elections are as follows.

Serial Description Gazette | Date of
No. No. Issue

1 Appointment of Returning Officers and Assistant 26/2311 | 21.12.2022
Returning Officers under section (1) 4

2 Appointment of Returning Officers in respect of each | 27/2311 | 21.12.2022
local authority under section 27 read with section (1)
4.

3 Exhibition of Electoral Registers 04/2312 | 27.12.2022

4 Gazette notification detailing the number of 44/2312 | 29.12.2022
candidates to be presented for each local authority

5 Announcement of newly recognized political parties 32/2311 | 27.12.2022
through a gazette notification

6 Gazette notification including party symbols 34/2312 | 28.12.2022

7 List of Recognized Political Parties- Gazette 31/2312 | 28.12.2022
notification

8 List of recognized political parties - Gazette 33/2312 | 28.12.2022
notification under section 27A
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2.5.5 Circulars Issued for Local Authorities Elections 2023

Information about the circulars issued in relation to the 2023 local authorities elections
included in Note 28.

2.5.6 Documents, Forms, Envelopes, Journals, Instruction Books and Other Documents

Issued to the Government Press for Printing
Information about document preparation related to the above matter is mentioned as Note 29.

2.5.7 Press Releases, Instructions, Letters Issued and Discussions held in relation to
Local Authorities Elections 2023

Notification to publicize the election notice at each local authority level in relation to the
local authorities election.

Notice that nominations will be accepted from 18.01.2023 to 12.00 noon on 21.01.2023 in
terms of Section 5 of the Local Authorities Elections Ordinance.

Publication of media announcement about postal voting.

To consider the possibility of reducing the polling staff, a mock poll was conducted on
16.12.2022.

Instructions were given to take action to check the condition of the official stamps used for
polling on the 17, 18, 19 and 20.12.2022 and to repair accordingly.

Actions have been taken to give instructions to the district election offices to repair the ballot
boxes.

A coding system has been introduced to facilitate the identification of postal vote certification
officers and institutions and activities have been carried out accordingly to update the
relevant information.

Doing the necessary work to prepare a data system to gazette the information related to the
nominations as well as the household notice, the poll notice, the notice displayed at the

polling station and the information of the elected members and act accordingly.

2.6 Special Projects

In the past years, 26 internationally celebrated special day celebration programs have been

carried out that can be used for the project of informing citizens about the need to treat

32



everyone equally, which is the basis of universal suffrage, which is directly and indirectly

connected to the process of protecting universal suffrage guaranteed by the Constitution.

In 2022, out of these 26 programs, it was suggested that only 6 selected programs directly

related to the process of preserving universal suffrage should be celebrated.

This year, it was proposed to achieve the above objectives by supporting the events or
awareness programs organized by the ministries or departments related to these subjects for

the above day celebrations and by providing resourcefulness when necessary.

2.6.1 Voter's Day Celebration

Based on the fact that enfranchising the youth community who have completed 18 years of
age through a supplementary roll as soon as they reach the age of 18 and the Voter's Day,
which was scheduled for June 1, will be changed to February 1, a voter's day celebration on
the theme "Your vote is the future of the country” was held on March 11, 2022 at the
Galadhari Hotel in Colombo with the participation of nearly 400 guests including His
Excellency the President, the Prime Minister, as well as all political party secretaries, youth
parliamentary representatives, representatives of disabled organizations, women's
organizations, election monitoring organizations as well as Election Commission officials,
electronic and print media. In this event, the Election Commission's opinion on the proposed
amendments to the election laws related to the election process was also socialized. The
primary objective of this event was to gain wide public attention on issues, changes and
proposed amendments that directly affect the right of the people to vote, and it is very

important for the Election Commission to be able to hold it very effectively.

2.6.2 Celebration of International Democracy Day

Since it is the role of the Election Commission to make arrangements for the free and fair
expression of the right to vote, which is a central part of the people’s sovereignty guaranteed
by the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka, the International
Democracy Day celebration in 2022 was held on September 15 at the Taj Samudra Hotel,
Colombo with the technical support of the International Institute of Electoral Systems to raise

awareness about it.
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2.6.3 Citizens with disabilities
2.6.3.1 Inform the representatives of MyRight about the actions taken by the Election

Commission for the Inclusive Election process.

At the request of the People with Disabilities Organizations Joint Front (DOJF) a briefing
program was held on 19.01.2022 at the Head Office Auditorium Hall on the steps taken by
the Election Commission for an inclusive election process with the MyRight delegation.On
this occasion, the Swedish representative Varaik and Myriat Institute local coordinators, the
group of United Front Representatives of People with Disabilities and the Election
Commission were represented by the Additional Commissioner of Electios (Local
Authorities) and other officials. It is special to expect that the external parties have been
informed about the measures taken by the Election Commission for the participation of

persons with disabilities in the election process.

2.6.3.2Make Awareness of Visually Impaired Persons on Registration of Electors

1000 copies of printed handout were printed in braille medium to inform the voters about the
day. 200 copies of which were distributed to 12 schools educating visually impaired children
on 11.02.2022. The expected result was that school children were made aware of the

importance of registration of electors.

2.6.3.3Provision of basic training in sign language for officialsengaged in election duty

Arrangements made to provide the official with basic training in sign language in order to
reduce the inconvenience caused by hearing-impaired persons not being able to communicate

with the election officials at the polling station.

It was planned to train several officers in the district and provide basic training for officers at
the district level through them. A preliminary discussion on this was held on 22.02.2022 with
the representatives of the Sri Lanka Central Federation of the Deaf (SLCFD). The expected
outcome of this is to train at least 50 trainee officers with basic knowledge of sign language
in the 25 districts.
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2.6.3.4 Participation in the National Event to Celebrate Voters' Day
Representatives of different types of disabilities and representatives of DIESL-TWG member
organizations participated in the National Voter's Day Celebration organized by the Election

Commission.

The main purpose of this was to have awareness about Voter's Day and to include all
communities in the organization of national level programs and in this regard, 19 people
representing organizations of people with disabilities participated in the event held at
Galadhari Hotel on 11.03.2022.

2.6.3.5 Preparation of a Short-Term Solution Proposal for the Problems Faced by

Voters with Disabilities in Marking Their Votes.

This program organized by Pafferal organization was held on 31.03.2022 at Boralesgamuwa
HelpAge Institute. Representatives of disabled people's organizations participated in this
event and discussed proposals that could be implemented immediately. These proposals are
planned to be submitted to the Parliamentary Select Committee by the PAFFREL

Organization. The Commissioner GeneralofElectionsparticipated in this event.

2.6.3.6 Discussion of practical solutions to problems faced by persons with disabilities.

For this program designed by PAFFREL organization a discussion on 04.06.2022 on voter
registration and physical access facilities, notification of monitoring organizations to include
persons with disabilities in voter registration 2022, provision of identification cards for
persons with disabilities at polling stations held at the Sri Lanka Foundation with the
participation of civil society activists and the Commissioner General of Elections, Additional

Commissioner of Elections (Local Authorities) and National Elections was included.

2.6.3.7 ldentifying The Problems Faced by Persons with Disabilities in The Electoral

Process.

A discussion organized by the PAFFREL organization to get opinions on the problems and
alternative proposals faced by persons with disabilities in the election process in Kandy,
Matale, Kagalle, Kurunegala and Puttalam districts was held at Kandy Sarvodaya Institute on
05.05.2022 with the participation of 25 people.
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2.6.3.8 Sensitization of the District Election Assistant Commissioners and New Staff on

Persons with Disabilities.

IFES and the Election Commission have developed a model of a polling station to sensitize
people with disabilities on the problems they face at the polling station as part of the Election
Commission's new staff training program and a discussion was held in Colombo on
26.05.2022 with the District Assistant Commissioners of Elections and other task force
officials regarding the sensitizing of the staff of the Election Commission on the common

problems of persons with disabilities and the necessary interventions to solve those problems.

2.6.3.9 Enlisting the participation of political party representatives to solve the

problems faced in involving persons with disabilities in the electoral process.

The PAFFREL organization informed the political party representatives and civil society
activists about the direct participation and sensitization of people with disabilities in the
election process, and about providing opportunities for their problems through political
parties. A discussion in relation to carrying out the necessary sensitization to solve the
problems faced by persons with disabilities in the electoral process through the currently
registered political parties was held on 17.06.2022 at the Election Commission by the
Honorable Chairman of the Election Commission, the Commissioner General with
representatives of political parties, election monitoring organizations and representatives of

organizations of persons with disabilities.

2.6.3.10 Discussing the proposals of the representatives of Disability Organizations Joint

Front

A meeting of the representatives of the Disability Organizations Joint Frontwith all the
members including the Chairman of the Election Commission was held at the Election
Commission. For that, the Commissioner General of Elections and the officers in charge of
the relevant subjects also participated. Focusing on the suggestions and opinions of the
representatives of organizations of persons with disabilities, the future work was discussed in
the Election Commission on 08.08.2022. The purpose of this was to focus the commission's
attention on the proposals and ideas of the representatives of disabled people's organizations

and for that, 07 people representing the Disability Organizations Joint Front participated.
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2.6.3.11 In order to make the community of persons with disabilities in Sri Lanka
active stakeholders in the election process, to confirm their identity of

disability and make recommendations on online challenges.

A discussion was held at the Mandarina Hotel, Kollupitiya on 18.08.2022 with the
participation of the Commissioner General of Elections, representatives of the Disability
Organizations Joint Front, representatives of the election monitoring organizations, where the
study report conducted by Mr. Manjula Gajanayake on the obstacles to inclusion in the
process was launched. For this purpose, the PAFFREL organization was fully sponsored, and
it was proposed to direct the focus of the Election Commission on the challenges faced by
persons with disabilities and prepare future programs for it.

2.6.3.12 Seek suggestions and ideas from visually impaired persons to improve the
stencil framework that guides the electoral process and raise awareness of

democracy and universal suffrage.

A program related to carrying out rehearsal activities for marking votes using the guide
stencil frame for marking the ballot paper was held On 30.08.2022 in Pasikuda with the
participation of the visually impaired in the districts of Batticaloa, Ampara, Trincomalee and
Polonnaruwa District in the Eastern Province and the participation of 54 visually impaired
persons, the Chairman of the Election Commission, the members and the Commissioner
General of Elections including the officers of the Election Commission, the convener of the
technical committee for an inclusive election process in Sri Lanka and with the participation
and resourcefulness of the representatives of the the International Foundation for Electoral
Systems. It was hoped to seek suggestions and ideas for improving the guiding stencil
framework for marking the electoral symbol and to create awareness about democracy and

universal suffrage.

2.6.3.13 Sensitization of Journalists For PWD-Friendly Use Of Media During Election

Process

The International Foundation for Elections, the International Foundation for an Inclusive
Election Process in Sri Lanka and the Election Commission conducted a media sensitization
campaign on 16.09.2022 at Kollupitiya with the participation of 25 journalists. For this
purpose, a model polling station was used to exchange experiences on the problems faced by
disabled people in the polling station.
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2.6.3.14 Raising Awareness of The Electoral Process for People with Intellectual

Disabilities.

An awareness and practical training was conducted on 13.10.2022 for 60 people at Kotagala

in Kegalle District, where people with intellectual disabilities are housed.

Government officials including the Chairman of the Election Commission, the Commissioner
General, the Kegalle District Secretary, as well as representatives of the International Institute
on Election Process and representatives of disabled people's organizations also participated in

this event. Financial support was provided by IFES.

2.6.3.15 Consultation with Stakeholders on Implementation of The2022 - 2025
Strategic Plan.

A discussion on the implementation of the planned programs related to voters with
disabilities in the year 2023 was held on 16.11.2022 in the auditorium of the Elections
Secretariat. Collaborate to implement programs related to persons with disabilities was
discussed here and about 10 people representing organizations of persons with disabilities

participated.

2.6.3.16 Dialogue on Inclusion of the Election Process in Sri Lanka, Publicization of the

Electoral Inclusion Online Book and Release of the Documentary Video.

Sensitization and awareness raising about an inter-election process involving
Deputy/Assistant Electoral Officers representing the District Election Offices was done with
the Disability Organizations Joint Front. The research book and video prepared by the United
Front was launched. This was held at Sri Jayawardenepura Monarch Imperial Hotel and

nearly 50 people participated in this.

2.6.4. Program Coordination

Programs under special projects are coordinated by the Local Authorities Division.

2.6.5. Program Implementation

The implementation of programs related to the confirmation of voting rights of all electoral

stakeholders is carried out under the special projects of the Local Authorities Branch.
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2.6.6. The responsibility of the Election Commission to ensure the voting rights of

persons with disabilities

According to the vision of the Election Commission, for a country that preserves universal
suffrage, ensuring an electoral process that includes the marginalized community and
affirming the right of persons with disabilities to enjoy the right to vote on an equal and fair

basis with others, and related measures are being taken.

2.6.7. The main tasks performed for the voting rights of persons with disabilities

Implementation of activities of theLocalAuthorities Divisionandpreparation of relevant
reports according to the four-year strategic plan of the Election Commission.
Providing proposals for legal reforms to remove legal barriers for the electoral process that

includes persons with disabilities.

Activities related to provision of special facilities in respect of disabled electors who go to

the polling stations to cast their votes in all elections and polls.

Ensuring that voting procedures, facilities and equipment are available, accessible and easy

to understand and use.

Ensuring the effective and full participation of persons with disabilities on an equal basis
with others while protecting their right to vote and to be elected, free and confidential.

Ensuring the free expression of the will of persons with disabilities as voters and, where

necessary, allowing assistance to vote through a person of their own choice at their request.

Implementation of activities of theLocalAuthoritiesDivisionandpreparation of relevant
reports according to the strategic plan of the Election Commission.
Coordination of electors with disabilities and awareness programs for electors with

disabilities.
2.6.8. Challenges Faced Due to the Epidemic Situation

Due to the covid epidemic situation and the economic situation of the country, it was

problematic to conduct stakeholder awareness programs as planned in the year 2022 as well.
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2.6.9. Women, Youth, Social Mediaand International Day Celebration Programs

In conjunction with International Women's Day on March 8, 2022, women engaged in
politics at the district level / members of grassroots organizations / government officials have
been informed about the fundamentals of democracy as follows.

District No. of Participants
Matale 50
Vavuniya 30
Mullaitivu 25
Ampara 55
Puttalam 20
Polonnaruwa 136
Kegalle 30

Two programs were conducted in Sinhala and Tamil media to inform women civil activists
about democracy under the theme "A Way to Change (Wenasakata Magak)”. Programs were
conducted on 22.07.2022 through Sinhala media with the participation of 66 women civil
activists and on 29.07.2022 through Tamil media with the participation of 44 women civil
activists. These programs were jointly organized with the PAFFREL organization and were
held in the Auditorium of the Elections Secretariat under the leadership of the Chairman of
the Election Commission.

2.7. Annual Action Plan

Preparation of annual action plan including the activities carried out by each division of the

Election Commission.

Quarterly review the progress of the annual action plan and prepare progress reports and
forward the reports to the Ministry of Finance.
2.8. Strategic Plan

e The second strategic plan for the Election Commission for the period of four years (2022
— 2025) was prepared and the implementation of the activities indicated therein has

started.
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2.9. Media Coordination Activities

Journalists including Heads/Chief Editors/News Editors of all electronic and print media
organizations were made participated to give wide publicity to the annual Voter's Day
celebration organized by the Colombo District Election Office on 01.02.2022 mainly
focusing the new law amendment adopted to enable youth to be registered in the voter list as
soon as they turn 18 years of age under the theme of "Your vote is the future of the country”.

Supprort of the Sri Lanka Broadcasting Corporation, Independent Television Service
Limited, Sri Lanka Television Corporation, Derana Television Institute , Hiru Television
Institute, Swarnavahini Television Institute, Sirasa Television Institute was obtained to
conduct interviews with the officials including the Chairman of the Election Commission on
the celebrations of the Annual Voter's Day 2022 organized by the Election Commission.

A press conference was held at the Election Commission on 09.06.2022 to inform the
journalists of all electronic and print media organizations about the views held by the
Election Commission regarding the current situation in the country and the proposals and
actions taken in connection with it.

On the occasion of the International Youth Day on 12.08.2022, an opportunity was provided
to braoadcast a Y2-hour program on 12.08.2022 through all electronic channels on the
message of the Election Commission about the importance of the Act recently passed by the
Election Commission to provide an opportunity to register in the electoral register as soon as

the age of 18 years is attained.

The Election Commission has issued 20 press releases on the following main points during

the relevant period.

i. Notification of decisions of the Election Commission.

ii. Announcement of the number of MPs entitled to be elected for each electoral district
according to the certified electoral register in 2021 in accordance with sub-article (8) of
Article 98 of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka.

iii. To inform that a discussion regarding the amendment of the 2022 electoral register with
the Election Commission and the secretaries of the recognized political parties will be
held on 23.02.2022 at the Election Commission and that it has been decided to hold
training workshops for Sri Lanka Police officers, Election Dispute Resolution Unit
officers and election monitoring organization officers on how the election law will

contribute to the conduct of free and fair elections by avoiding the obstacles that have
41



appeared so far in the use of electoral law, procedural law, directives and guidelines in the
upcoming elections.

iv. Notification of the matters discussed in the meeting with the Election Commission and
the Secretaries of the recognized political parties.

v. Notification that the Voter's Day 2022 organized by the Election Commission will be held
on 11.03.2022.

vi. The Election Commission, which focused on the crisis situation in the country, declared
the position of the Election Commission to alleviate the situation.

vii. Informing the public about the preparation of electoral registers for the year 2022.

viii.  Informing the public about the revision process of the electoral registers in the year
2022.

iX. Notification of the Parliamentary Special Select Committee on Electoral Law
Amendments regarding recognition of political parties and revision ofelectoral registers.

X. Informing about the matters discussed and the decisions reached in the meeting held on
08.08.2022 with the secretaries of the recognized political parties represented in the

Parliament.

2.10. Record Room

The functions of the Record Room of the Election Commission have been established in a
new premises and worked to maintain it in a more organized manner. A proper storage
program was initiated to make the documents there more secure and for easy access by any
party as needed.

A full-time officer has been assigned for this purpose. The official has been given formal
training by the Department of National Archives in archival work and thus worked to perform
the services of the Record Room more effectively.

2.11. Knowledge Management Unit and Museum

Scholars, researchers, political party activists and representatives of election monitoring
organizations regularly make inquiries about the functions of the Election Commission and to
get information and in many cases, they come to the Commission to get
information.Therefore, in order to carry out these functions in a more effective and efficient
manner, the Election Commission has established a knowledge management unit and those
who need information have been provided facilities to come to this unit and obtain
information related to them.
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2.12. Publications Published During the Year 2022

Four Year Participation Strategic Plan2022 — 2025
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A quarterly news lettercalled “KatirayeBalaya”was published under the thrust areas
identified in the Election Commission's 2017-2020 four-year participatory strategic plan.
The third edition of the fifth volume (September - December 2021), the first edition of the
sixth volume (January - April 2022) and the second edition of the sixth volume (May -

September 2022) of the news letter have been printed.

In conjunction with the 2022 Voter's Day National Celebration held on 11.03.2022 to create a
broad understanding of universal suffrage, people's sovereignty and democracy among the
people, academic articles by university professors and professionals in the field under the
name "2022 Voter's Day National Celebration" A collection of letters was printed and

published.




The report of the Election Commission on the parliamentary election held on 05.08.2020 was

printed in trilingual and the report was tabled in Parliament on 04.05.2022.
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Preparation and printing of the gazettes issued by the Election Commission for the 2015

Presidential Election and the 2015 Parliamentary Election as two single books.

-

Preparation of the 2022 progress report of the Election Commission for submission to the

2023 budget committee session.
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The "Footprint of the Second Year (Dewana WasarePiyasatahan™ report was prepared from
01.01.2022 to 31.12.2022.

2.13.Legal Affairs

During the year 2022, 48 newly filed lawsuits have been reported to the Election Commission
naming the Chairman and members of the Election Commission and the officers of the

Election Commission as respondents.
2.13.1Supreme Court

There are 16 cases filed in the Supreme Court. Among the cases filed in the Supreme Court,
there are 09 cases related to the membership of the Parliament (Case No. SC/FR/203/2022,
SC/FR/207/2022, SC/Writ/04/2022, SC/FR/210/2022, SC/FR/206/2022, SC/FR/216/2022,
SC/FR/217/2022, SC/FR/211/2022, SC/FR/215/2022), 03 proceedings related to termination
of party membership (Case No. SC/Exp/01/2022, SC/Exp/02/2022, SC/Exp/03/2022), and 02
proceedings related to the local authorities elections to be held (Case No. SC/Writ/06/2022 ,
SC/Writ/06/2022), 01 proceeding related to the position of local authority chairman (Case
No. SC/Writ/02/2022) and 01 proceeding related to political party registration (Case No.
SC/FR/247 /2021) have been filed.

2.13.2 Court of Appeal

Sixcases filed in the Court of Appeal have been received and among those cases 04 cases are
related to the position of chairman of local authorities (Case No. CA/Writ/52/2022,
CA/Writ/24/2022, CA/Writ/11/2022, CA/Writ/182/2022), 01 proceeding related to non-
inclusion of name in electoral register (Case No. CA/Writ/255/2022) and 01 proceeding
regarding citizenship (Case No. CA/Writ/434/2022) have been filed.
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2.13.3 High Court

Nine cases filed in the High Court have been received, out of which 07 cases (Case No.
WP/HCCA/COL/LA/04/2022, WP/HCCA/COL/LA/05/2022, HC/NE/Writ/02/2022,
WP/HCCA/COL/LA/127/2022, WP/HCCA/COLOMBO/175/22/LA, HC/NE/Writ/13/2022,
WP/HCCA/ML./54/2021/LA ) are proceedings related to the termination of party
membership, and 02 (Case No. HC/NE/Writ/04/2022, HCW/04/2022) are proceedings related

to the chairmanship of local authorities.
2.13.4 District Court

The number of cases filed in the district court is 17, and 16 of those cases are related to the
termination of party membership, and 01 is against the removal of the name from the
electoral register. They are (Case No. DSP/10/2022-Colombo, DSP/11/2022-Colombo,
DSP/25/2022- Colombo, SPL/31/2022- Jaffna, SPL/373/2022-Moratuwa, DSP/161/2022 -
Colombo, DSP/162/2022-Colombo, DSP/156/2022-Colombo, DSP/147/2022-Colombo,
DSP/436/2021-Colombo, DSP/441/2021-Colombo, DSP/107/2021-Colombo :
DSP/442/2021-Colombo, DSP/435/2021-Colombo, SPL/04/2022-Mathugama,
DSP/458/2022-Colombo, 1546/ 22/ Special-Mt.

The Election Commission has received 01 amended petition related to the petitions filed in
previous years and 06 amended petitions related to the petitions filed this year. In relation to
all the above proceedings and amended petitions, the chairman and members of the Election
Commission have forwarded the proxies signed by the Election Officers to the Attorney
General's Department. Also, the Election Commission's observations related to the above

cases have been forwarded to the Attorney General's Department for 32 cases.

As the Attorney General's Department is appearing for the case No. 47057 filed by the
Matara Police in the Matara Magistrate's Court regarding the violation of election laws, a

Matara private lawyer was assisted to lead evidence on behalf of the Commission.

It has been reported to the Election Commission that out of the cases filed in the year 2022,
the proceedings of 09 cases (Case No. SC/FR/203/2022, SC/FR/207/2022, SC/Writ/04/2022,
SC/FR/210/2022, SC/FR/206/2022, WP/HCCAJ/COL/LA/04/2022,
WP/HCCA/COL/LA/05/2022, HC/NE/Writ/04/2022, DSP/11/2022 (Colombo) were over so
far and the proceedings of 17 cases (Case No. SC/Exp/03/2019,SC/FR/440/2019,
SC/FR/200/2021, DSP/05/2021, MIS/168/2018, MIS/167/2018, CA/Exp/01/2019,
CA/Exp/01/2020, DSP/13/2020, CA/Writ/242/2021, CAJ/Exp/01/2020, DSP/88/2021,
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SC/WIrit/09/2022, SC/SPL/228/2021/LA, SC/FR/440/2019, SC/Writ/03/2021, DSP/07/2021)

related to previous years were over.
2.13.5 Requests advice from Attorney General

In addition, 08 inquiries have been made to the Attorney General regarding various legal
situations. Legal advice was also given to the letters received from the National Election
Division and District Election Offices regarding the revision of the electoral register. 40 such
legal advices have been given. For 05 complaints received from the Human Rights

Commission, inquiries and necessary actions have been taken from the relevant parties.

2.13.6.1nvestigations related to the Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or

Corruption and the Disposal of B.C. Forms

Also, necessary information has been provided for 04 investigations related to the
Commission to Investigate Allegations of Bribery or Corruption.Advice was given to the
letters received asking for advice regarding the disposal of documents and B. C. Forms
related to the previous elections. 18 such instructions have been given. Also the summons
related to providing evidence for the cases pending in the District Courts and Magistrate
Courts were forwarded to the respective District Election Offices and 18 related instructions

have been given.

2.14. Election Law Amendments

The Bill for the Control of Election Expenses related to the amendment of the Election Laws
has been forwarded to the Election Commission by the Legal Draftsman's Department i after
the observation of the Honorable Attorney General and by now, a cabinet paper has been
forwarded to the Hon'ble President to get it approved by the Cabinet and to publish in the

Gazette in all the three languages as a Bill.

2.14.1. Electoral Law Reform Proposals submitted to the Parliament by the Special

Parliamentary Select Committee on Electoral Law Reforms

To prepare the necessary social background for the speedy legalization of the electoral law
reform proposals submitted to the Parliament by the Special Parliamentary Select Committee
on Electoral Law Reforms and in order to inform the community about it, a series of
conferences covering every district of the island was held under the sponsorship of the

Institute for Democratic Reforms and Electoral Studies (IRES) and the International
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Foundation for Electoral Systems (IFES) and information about that has been included as
Note 30.

2.15 Proceedings relating to the Right to Information Act, No. 12 of 2016

During the period from 01.01.2022 to 31.12.2022, 65 out of 74 information requests made in
relation to the Right to Information Act have been given information and 03 information
requests have been rejected. Information has not been provided for 06 information requests.

2.16 Political Parties
2.16.1. Registration of political parties and calling for applications

The political party system carries out a great task to select representatives for the governance
of a country and to adapt those representatives to the political environment.Therefore, the
role of political parties is very important in representative democracy. A political party is a
political organization that tries to gain state power on a certain policy.The legal arrangements
for the registration of these active political organizations as recognized political parties for
election purposes in the Election Commission are set out in the section seven of the
Parliamentary Elections Act No. 1 of 1981.

Accordingly, a public notice is published by the Election Commission before the 31st of
January of every year, informing that a certain political active organization should submit a
written request to be registered as a recognized political party in the Election Commission.
The relevant activist organization shall submit its request within the specified period
mentioned in the notice and this process shall be suspended until the end of the election

period if the date for any election has been announced.

Politically active organizations must submit applications to the Election Commission for
recognition as recognized political parties and along with the application, a symbol of their
choice from among the voting symbols approved by the Election Commission, the party
constitution, the list of party officers which includes at least one woman representative in a
key post, audited statement of accounts, current policy statement of the party along with the
information of compulsoryly engagement in politics for a period of at least four years prior to
the date of submission of these requests or that at least one candidate out of two candidates
has won in the Parliamentary General Election held prior to the date of submission of such
requests Information that out of at least five candidates nominated for five different

Provincial Councils, three have won in the Provincial Council elections held prior to the date
48



of submission of these requests, should be submitted to the Commission and the Commission

should be satisfied in that regard.

An announcement under sub-section 8(9) of the Parliamentary Elections Act No. 01 of 1981
including detailed information was published in the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2263/23 dated
21.01.2022.The approved symbols for political parties for the purposes of the Parliamentary
Elections Act No. 01 of 1981 were published by the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2263/24 dated
21.01.2022 and it has been amended by the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2267/2 dated
14.02.2022.

The call for applications for registration of political parties for the year 2022 started on
24.01.2022 and ended on 25.02.2022 and 80 political organizations submitted applications

for registration for the year 2022. The information regarding that is shown below.

e Number of applications received - 80
e Number of rejected due to late delivery - 04
e The number of rejections due to non-fulfilment of basic facts - 34
e Number of Resigned - 03
e The number selected for the first stage of interviews - 39
e Number of rejections after the first stage of interview - 26
e The number selected for the second stage of interviews - 13
e Number of rejections after the second stage of interview - 06
e Number of recognized political parties for the year 2022 - 07

The process of accepting political parties for the year 2022 has now been completed and 07
political parties have been accepted for the year 2022. Before accepting these political
parties, the number of political parties accepted by the Election Commission was 79.
Information about it was published in the Extraordinary Gazette No. 2263/22 dated January
21, 2022 and was also published on the website of the Election Commission

www.elections.gov.lk.

Also, the list of all recognized political parties was published in the Extraordinary Gazette
No. 2312/31 dated 28.12.2022. That information is given as Annexure 02.

2.16.2 Discussions Held with Political Party Secretaries

Discussions were held in the Election Commission during the period under review i.e. on
23.02.2022, 06.06.2022, 08.08.2022 and 23.08.2022 to obtain the consent of the recognized

political party secretary/regular representatives on the proposals submitted to the
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Parliamentary Special Select Committee appointed to amend the Election Laws and on
process of revision of electoral registers, operation of political parties, obtaining support from
officials and activists of political parties for a free and fair election, media guidelines and
ethics, political party registration and providing annual reports, filling vacancies in local
authorities, in connection with the holding of elections by provincial councils and local
authorities.Representatives of election monitoring organizations were also invited for these

discussions.

2.17 Election Dispute Resolution

15 training workshops were held for civil officers, state-informed police officers, Officers in
Charge of Police and officers of election monitoring organizations who are expected to be
assigned to election dispute management units on the methods of election dispute resolution
and the implementation of election laws in the upcoming elections and information about that

is included in Note 31.

These workshops were sponsored by Center for Monitoring Election Violence (CMEV),
International Foundation for Electoral Systems (IFES) and People's Action for Free and Fair
Elections (PAFFREL). Apart from that, before the end of this year, the Kalutara and
Colombo district workshops were also expected to be held under the provisions of a
sponsoring organization, but due to the bad economic situation, it was not possible to contact

an organization to sponsor it, so the programs had to be postponed.

2.18 Control of Vehicle Fleet

The number of vehicles taken over by the Election Commission in the year 2022 is 11 on the
completion of 05 years from the vehicles provided by the Treasury under the financial leasing

system.

Toyota Lanka, its agent, had submitted an estimate of 32 lakh rupees for the repair work of
the Toyota cab bearing 253-0452 attached to the Mannar office. The estimate was submitted
to the Mechanical Engineer. It was proposed to be disposed as it was not economically viable

to pay so much for repairssince this cab has been running for about 24 years now.

However, a request was received to hand over this vehicle to the Department of Government

Factory and accordingly, this vehicle was handed over to the said department on 16.09.2022.
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The two cabs PI-2359 and PI-2360 which had been obtained under the operational leasing
system were handed over to the relevant institution on 31.07.2022 before the end of the
contract period, as the use was not beneficial due to the need to pay higher premiums due to
the economic crisis in the country. Also, the Outlander car bearing CAY-4839 has also been
returned on 20.06.2022.

The motorcycle bearing UI-9835, which was proposed for disposal, was sold at public
auction on 16.11.2022, and as a result, the government has received an income of
Rs.56,500.00.

2.18.1 Information about the Vehicles of the Election Commission

Following is the information about the vehicles assigned to the Commission in the year 2022
on the completion of 05 years from the vehicles provided by the Ministry of Finance under

the financial leasing system.

Serial | Regsitration Year of manufacture Da’Fe_o_f Value Rs.

No. No. of the vehicle acquisition
1 CAR-5330 2014 01.02.2022 7,390,000.00
2 CAR-5342 2014 01.02.2022 7,390,000.00
3 CAR-5346 2014 01.02.2022 7,390,000.00
4 CAD-1251 2014 01.02.2022 7,400,000.00
5 PG-1775 2014 01.02.2022 6,390,000.00
6 PG-1781 2014 01.02.2022 6,390,000.00
7 PG-1782 2014 01.02.2022 6,390,000.00
8 PG-1783 2014 01.02.2022 6,390,000.00
9 PG-1784 2014 01.02.2022 6,390,000.00
10 PG-3994 2014 01.02.2022 6,390,000.00
11 PG-3995 2014 01.02.2022 6,390,000.00
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The information about the vehicles possessed by the Election Commission as on 31.12.2022

is as follows.
Office
ieor.ial Vehicle Type | Quantity Head Office District Offices
Reserved | Assigned | Reserved | Assigned

1 Cabs 34 7 - 27 -
2 Cars 19 10 9 - -
3 Vans 03 3 - - -
4 Jeeps 01 - 1 - -
5 Lorries 01 1 - - -
6 Crew Cabs 01 1 - - -
7 Motor Cycles 01 1 - - -
8 Buses 1 1 - - -

Total 61 24 10 27 -

2.19 Constructions and Assets
2.19.1. Construction and Repair
Object - 2001

Urgent and essential repairs have been carried out in the Election Commission office
premises, including setting up and installing 08 iron shelves in the Procurement Division of
the Elections Secretariat, repairing the nameplates in the main auditorium, restoring the
electrical supply system in the two rooms where the water motors are kept,construction of a
building to house the new generator, and repairing the water leak on the second floor of the
North Terminal Building.

Actions have been taken to carry out urgent and essential repairs in Matara and Vavuniya
District Election Offices.

Urgent and essential repairs have also been carried out at the residence of the Kandy District
Deputy Commissioner of Elections and the Trincomalee tourist resort and it is a matter of
special emphasis that only essential and urgent reOpairs have been carried out in accordance
with the National Budget Circular No. 03/2022.

Rs. 5.7 million have been spent for all those activities.
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Object - 2104

Completion of the first phase of the new four-storied building for the Jaffna District Election
Office and proposals for the construction of the second phase have been submitted to the
Ministry of Finance and further work has been done to use the part that is currently

completed.

2.20. Purchaseof Materials, Purchase/Repair/Maintenance of Machinery and
Equipment
2.20.1. Registration of VVoters

For the annual voter registration activities, instead of BC forms, ER forms were printed to
collect only “A” and “B” information.15 lakh ER forms were printed by the government
press and then distributed to the district offices. About 65 lakh YC forms and instruction
leaflets on the preparation of supplementary lists were printed and distributed to the district

offices in relation to the preparation of a supplementary list introduced from the year 2022.

2.20.2. Printing of Electoral Registers

The 2022 electoral register has also been printed by the Government Press this year and
distributed to the respective district offices after the completion of the printing. About Rs.
17.40 million should be paid to the Government Press as the cost for that and only 33 lakhs
have been paid.

2.20.3 Purchase/Repair/Maintenance of Machinery and Equipment

The need for machinery and equipment has arisen for the needs of the head offices and
district election offices, but due to limited funds, it has not been possible to purchase items
such as computers, computer printers, DCP machines, photocopiers. But due to having to buy

UPS and laptop computers, Rs. 2.58 million was spent.

A generator was purchased and installed as per the requirement of the Information and

Technology Division of the head office, for which a sum of Rs. 6.91 million had to be spent.
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Necessary repair work was carried out for computers, computer printers, fax machines,
photocopiers and air-conditioners including other machinery equipments in the Head Offices
and District Election Offices. For that Rs. 3.29 million had to be spent.

To purchase toner and drum units for computer printers and photocopiers used in offices, Rs.

18.34 million has been spent.

Arrangements were made to purchase and supply the necessary equipment and software to
network the head office and all district offices with internet facilities. For that Rs. An amount
of 13.11 million has been spent and for the monthly phone and internet facility bill for the

period up to November, Rs. 21 million has been paid to Sri Lanka Telecom.

Rs. 4.79 million was spent on contracting services for computers, computer printers,

photocopiers, duplicators and air conditioners in the head office and all district offices.

2.20.4 Purchase of Office Supplies

Arrangements were made to purchase and provide various office items such as desks, chairs
and cupboards for the staff of the head office and the district office. For that Rs. 2.69 million
had to be spent.According to the recommendation and decision of the Regional Procurement
Committee, approval has been given to purchase the necessary office supplies for the district
election offices as submitted and approved in the draft budget estimate, but due to lack of

provision, it has not been possible to purchase.

2.20.5 General

In addition to the stationery left over from the election, stationery had to be purchased to
meet the needs of the office for printing electoral registers, voter registration and other

stationery requirements. For that Rs. 10.3 million was spent.

Rs. 185,000 was spent on the purchase of drinking water for the drinking water requirement

of the head office and Rs. 305,000were spent on water bills.

The purchase of tyres for the district election office vehicles was carried out on the basis of
approval at the regional level and tyres were also successfully purchased and supplied to the
offices that could not be purchased in the district and for the vehicles of the Elections

Secretariat. For that, following the procurement methods, about Rs. 2.5 million were spent.
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Arrangements were made to hand over the used ballot papers and discarded paper at the head
office and district offices to the Government Paper Company as per Public Finance Circular
01/2020. For that, an amount of Rs. 1.38 millionwas received from the Paper Company in the
year 2022 and an amount of Rs. 2.21 million should be received.

About 10.58 million rupees were paid to the Government Press in the year 2022 for the

printing of documents including forms related to revision workand other documents.

2.21 Progress of Information Technology Activities

The primary responsibility of this division is todevelop IT applications efficiently and
effectively to the personnel of the organizationby modernizing the work of the Election
Commission using information and communication technology and to provide the IT services
required by the relevant stakeholders in a safe manner.Innovative IT requirements study and
planning, preparation and approval of project reports, project testing, installation and

personnel training are performed here.

2.21.1 Software Design, Development and Maintenance

Action has been taken to create / improve a new complete computerized program for the
preparation of supplementary lists to register every eligible citizen as an elector as soon as he
attains the age of 18 yearsas per the Registration of Electors (Amnedment) Act No. 22 of
2021 including all computer software required for revision of electoral register such as
preparation of "A" and "B" lists, claims and objections, prevention of multiple registration,
preparation of electoral register files for printing, taking statistics etc.

As done in previous years, programs were introduced and updated related to the revision of
the general electoral register in the year 2022 and computer programs were
prepared/improved to facilitate the work of the officers in charge of the polling divisions in

the district election offices.
Providing necessary technical instructions and guidance to the district election office officials

in carrying out the revision of electoral register through the computer programand the

provision of necessary technical assistance in obtaining electoral register extracts were also
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continued at relevant times throughout the year.In this regard, online training was also

provided through video technology.

Necessary arrangements were made to provide the necessary technical tools to work from
home using the data system safely for the officers who are unable to come to the offices due

to the transportation difficulties in the country.

A Dash Board was created with numerical data for administrative decision-making in

revision of the electoral registers.

The following computer programs were created to be used in connection with the upcoming
local authorities elections in the latter half of 2022.

Development of computer programs required to prepare the electoral register as local
authorities together with the certified electoral register and the certified supplementary lists,
creating the computer program required to computerize nominations, development of
computer program/ e-service for conducting officer census online and development of a

coding system to be used by government agencies to facilitate the above activities.

In addition, computer programs were created to facilitate the internal administration of the
Election Commission and they were improved in the year 2022. Maintaining a leave
management system for all officers of the head office to apply for leave online, developing
and maintaining the Vehicle Management Systemof the Election Commission, Expenditure
Management System for doing accounting work, developing and maintaining the Expenditure
Management System for carrying out accounting work, developing a Procurement Plan

Monitoring System and a Electoral Dispute Resolution Management System was also done.

2.21.2 Providing E-Services to Stakeholders Related to the Electoral Process

The provision of e-services to all stakeholders including political party candidates,

government institutions, government officials, voters was continued throughout the year.

Here, the official website of the Election Commission will be updated and maintained in all

three languages and especially the information related to the registration of political parties,
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the list of political parties, press releases, media reports, gazettes and circulars etc.will be

updated on the official election website in three languages throughout the year.

Also by providing updated information to the public using social media networks that are
widely spread in the society leverage the use of information technology to make the election
process efficient.

Provision of electoral register details required for admission of Grade One children to

government schools securely online at Election Commission approved rates.

In addition to this, providing technical assistance to the Department for Registration of
Persons, Department of Census and Statistics, Registrar General’s Department etc. to provide

online registration information of electoral register.

In the year 2022, actions were taken to facilitate voters to apply for registration and claim
online, to provide an online facility for updating voter details, to facilitate the public to obtain
voter roll extracts from any district election office in the island, which should have been
obtained from the election office of the district of residence in previous years, to introduce a
new e-service for young citizens above 16 years of age to apply online for registration in the
voter's list, to create and introduce the election education and participation website to provide
knowledge and education to all the stakeholders of the Election Commission about the
election process and related matters, and to set up and maintain a WhatsApp app and email
account to contact the relevant officials to solve the problems that arise in the use of election

e-services including online registration.

Activities such as directing public complaints received through the website and social media
networks to the appropriate parties and providing answers to them were also carried out

continuously throughout the year.

In addition to maintaining the office e-mail service at the head office and all district election

offices.
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2.21.3 Improvement and maintenance of infrastructure related to information and

communication technology

Improvement and maintenance of existing information and communication technology
infrastructure in the head office and district election offices was carried out continuously
throughout the year. There, Maintaining the services of the data center established at the main
office and the data disaster management center established at the Hambantota Election
Office, maintenance of services, taking backups etc. were carried out by the relevant

institutions.

Maintenance of computers, computer accessories, computer networks, VPNs, firewall and
ADSL internet system in district election offices including sections of the Election

Commission's head office.

Carrying out the maintenance of the Video Conference system, which was conducted from

the year 2018 using online methods.

Expanding the security camera system (CCTV), which was a very essential device in the

main office, and related future work was also carried out.

2.22  Financial and Audit Information

According to the revised budget estimates, the allocation for 2022 was 928.2 million rupees,
867.2 million rupees were earmarked for recurrent expenditure and 61 million rupees for
capital expenditure.In the year 2022, the recurrent expenditure was 852.3 million rupees and
in the year 2021, the expenditure was 787.6 million rupees. Overall, compared to the previous
year, the recurrent expenditure is shown to be 64.7 million rupees. The capital expenditure in
the year 2022 was 23.2 million rupees and in the year 2021 the expenditure was 82 million
rupees. The reason for the decrease in capital expenditure is the restriction of capital

expenditure by the budget circulars.

About 165.2 million rupees have been spent to prepare the electoral register for the year 2022
and the total cost is about 208 million rupees when the additional amount of 42 million

rupees to be paid to the officials for printing the list and counting is added. When compared
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with the cost of preparing the electoral register in 2021, which was 122.01 million rupees, the
cost of preparing the electoral register this year shows an increase of about 86 million rupees.

The increase in the cost of stationery and printing has contributed to this increase in expenses.

In this year, officers who applied for distress loans/special/festival advances have given loan
advances of Rs.21.4 million on behalf of employees. Compared to the previous year, the

amount of money given this year shows an expenditure of 15 million rupees.

In the year 2022, the income from the issuance of electoral register extracts is 4.2 million
rupees. In the year 2021, this income was 1.6 million rupees and when compared to that year,

the income from issuing extracts was an increase of 2.6 million rupees.

The electoral register is restricted from being prepared in books and prepared in compact
discs and the income earned this year by selling them is 0.1 million rupees. Compared to last

year's income of 0.3 million rupees, there is a decrease.

In the year 2022, 10 audit inquiries have been submitted to the National Audit Office under
various subjects up to 31.12.2022. All 10 questions have been answered. 02 audit queries
have been submitted in the Internal Audit Department. Answers to those audit queries have

been provided.

2.23. Activities of Internal Audit Division

To ensure that the responsibility of the Chief Returning Officer as set out in Sections 38(b)
and 38(e) of the National Audit Act is fulfilled in carrying out the internal audit of the
Election Secretariat and District Election Offices under the supervision of the Election
Commission,the statutory duties assigned to the Internal Audit Division were performed in
the year 2022 as per the appointments made in terms of section 40 of the said Act and the
powers assigned to the Internal Audit Division as per Financial Regulations 133 and 134 and
as per the terms specified in the Management Audit Circular No. DMA 01/2019 dated
2019.01.02 of the Management Audit Division.

The establishment of quarterly audit and management committees covering every
government agency is mandated under Section 41 of the National Audit Act. Accordingly, as

stated in Section 41(2) of the said Act, Audit and Management Committees were established
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with formal composition regarding the Election Commission and 3 such Committees were

held in the year 2022 with the Chief Internal Auditor as convener.

A risk-based annual internal audit plan was prepared for the year 2022 with more focus on
examining the most risky activities covering performance audit, system audit, financial audit
and special audits to ensure effective performance in the Election Commission. For this, more
than two hundred related activities were identified for each area of responsibility covering all
divisional functions. Accordingly, this division prepared a 2022 Annual Risk Register for the

Election Commission on the advice and guidance of the Management and Audit Division.

New internal audit programs and questionnaires were prepared in the year 2022 by
identifying the human and other resources required to carry out the tasks included in the
annual internal audit plan by the support staff. All questionnaires in use so far were revised or
updated to comply with risk-based internal audits. The Internal Audit Division contributed
resources for a residential workshop organized on 17.10.18, 2022 with the participation of
District Office Heads, Chief Assistant Returning Officers in charge of Committees and
Management Service Officers and related officers in charge of Procurement Subject
regarding the election welfare procurement work. Here the existing standard tender
documents for food procurement were redesigned to suit the corporate needs. The documents

have been forwarded to the Admin Division for appropriate action.

During the year 2022, it was arranged to provide the necessary training for the support staff
who will perform the duties of the internal audit unit. Accordingly, the support staff of the
Internal Audit Division actively participated in an online training program on information and
cyber security organized by the Sri Lankan branch of the Institute of Internal Auditors of the
United States.

It is stated in paragraph 8.2 of the management audit circular dated DMA/01-2019 and
2019.01.02 that all audit entities must submit the preliminary report of the chief internal
auditor to the head of the institution before the 31st of December of the relevant year.
Furthermore, it is stated in paragraph 8.3 of the said circular that the quarterly report of the
Chief Internal Auditor should be submitted to the Director General of the Management and
Audit Department within one month after the end of each quarter. Accordingly, the said

reports have been given to the respective heads in due course.
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The Internal Audit Charter was released in June 2022, which was the basic document
indicating the objectives, authority, responsibilities and position of the audit function in the
Commission regarding the Internal Audit Division in the Election Commission and the
arrangements were made to obtain the formal approval of the Management Audit

Department.

By mid-2022, despite the logistical difficulties experienced nationally, 22 internal audits
covering 82% were carried out as outlined in the revised internal audit plan for the year.
Accordingly, the internal audit reports were dealt with as per subsection 40(4)(3) of the
National Audit Act.

2.24  Future Goals

Conducting all relevant elections with due participation of all stakeholders, so that no one is
left behind as well as the work related to the revision of the electoral register which is

constitutionally assigned.

................... /

Saman Sri Ratnayake

Commissioner General of Elections
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Chapter 03 - Overall Financial Performance of the Year

3.1 Financial Performance

Rs.

Statement of Financial Performance
for the period ended 31st December 2022

Revenue Receipts
Income Tax

Taxes on Domestic Goods & Services
Taxes on International Trade

Non Tax Revenue & Others

Total Revenue Receipts (A)

Non Revenue Receipts
Treasury Imprests

Deposits

Advance Accounts

Receipts of other major ledger
accounts

Total Non Revenue Receipts (B)
Total Revenue Receipts &Non
Revenue Receipts C = (A)+(B)
Remittance to the Treasury (D)
Net Revenue Receipts &Non

Revenue
Receipts E = (C)-(D)

Less: Expenditure

Recurrent Expenditure

Wages, Salaries & Other Employment
Benefits

Other Goods & Services

Subsidies, Grants and Transfers
Interest Payments

Other Recurrent Expenditure

Total Recurrent Expenditure (F)

Capital Expenditure

Rehabilitation & Improvement of
Capital Assets

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Note

[y

A WN

O 0O NGO U

10

11
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2022
Rs.

842,279,000
1,294,928
31,703,530

875,277,458

875,277,458

875,277,458

530,776,977

318,026,727
3,531,244

852,334,948

6,381,891

15,903,144

Actual

2021
Rs.

827,560,000
2,909,695
31,318,602

42,412,012

904,200,309

904,200,309
33,504

904,166,805

495,412,932

288,797,612
3,438,952

787,649,496

32,962,604

46,917,344

ACA -F

ACA-1

ACA-3
ACA-4
ACA-5

- ACA-2(ii)

- ACA-2(ii)




Capital Transfers

Acquisition of Financial Assets
Capacity Building

Other Capital Expenditure
Total Capital Expenditure (G)

Deposit Payments
Advance Payments

Other Main Ledger Payments
Main Ledger Expenditure (H)

Total Expenditure | = (F+G+H)

Balance as at 31st December J = (E-

)

Balance as per the Imprest
Reconciliation Statement

Imprest Balance as at 31st
December

12
13
14
15
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928,033

23,213,068

2,866,805
27,283,667

30,150,472

905,698,488

(30,421,030)

(30,421,030)

(30,421,030)

2,140,986

82,020,934

6,012,754
29,279,986

80,372

35,373,112

905,043,542

(876,737)

(876,737)

(876,737)

ACA-4
ACA-5

ACA-7

ACA-3



Statement of Financial Position

As at 31st December 2022
_ Actual
Note 2022
Rs
ACA-6 2,206,017,496 2,065,916,625

vance Accounts ACA-5/5(a) 96,688,473 100,974,010
rCash & Cash Equivalents ACA-3 -
|
'Total Assets 2,302,705,969 2,166,890,635
|
!_ et Assets / Equi
;Net Worth 1o Treasury 95,495,827 98,209,487
Propeny Plant & Equipment
;,‘-Reservc 2,206,017,496 2,065,916,625
B
;Rem and Work Advance Reserve ACA-5(b)
?Qurrent Liabilities
|
| Deposits Accounts ACA-4 1,192,646 2,764,523
| Imprest Balance ACA-3 - -
ETottl Liabilities 2,302,705,969 2,166,890,635

|

lth:mlAq:oounnngStntememsmACAformmNos 1 to 7 presented in pages from 1 to 27 and Annexures

1o accounts presented in pages from 28 to 34 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. The

| Financial Statements have been prepared in complying with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
whereas most appropriate Accounting Policies are used as disclosed in the Notes to the Financial
Statements and hereby certify that figures in these Finacial Statements, Notes to accounts and other relevant
accounts were reconciled with the Treasury Books of Accounts and found inagreement.

!We hereby certify that an effective internal control system for the financial control exists in the Reporting
Enuly and carried out periodic reviews to monitor the effectiveness of internal control system for the

iﬁnanclal control accordingly make ahemﬁ/y;jmd for such systems 1o be effectively carried out.

Chief Counting Officer eoogm{ Officer Chief Financial Officer/ Chief

Accountant/Director (Finance)/
Ds:gmnon Commissioner (Finance)
I 82 -~ 2.2oa3 Date: @2 ca.a e Name : i
Date : .S.P. PERERA
SriRathnayake  g,man Sri Rathnajake Chief Financial Officer
Election wt;% Conmiiones wc“,md iz Sarana Mawatha,
= Sarana Mawatha, Rajagiriya




Statement of Cash Flows

for the Period ended 31st December 2022

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Total Tax Receipts

Fees, Fines, Penalties and Licenses

Profit

Non Revenue Receipts

Revenue Collected on behalf of Other Revenue Heads
Imprest Received

Recoveries from Advance

Deposit Received

Total Cash generated from Operations (A)

Less - Cash disbursed for:

Personal Emoluments & Operating Payments
Subsidies & Transfer Payments

Expenditure incurred on behalf of Other Heads
Imprest Settlement to Treasury

Advance Payments

Deposit Payments

Total Cash disbursed for Operations (B)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES(C )=(A)-(B)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest

Dividends

Divestiture Proceeds & Sale of Physical Assets
Recoveries from On Lending

Total Cash generated from Investing Activities (D)

Less - Cash disbursed for:
Purchase or Construction of Physical Assets & Acquisition of
Other Investment

Total Cash disbursed for Investing Activities (E)

NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES( F)=(D)-(E)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING & INVESTMENT
ACTIVITIES (G)=(C) + (F)

Cash Flows from Fianacing Activities

Local Borrowings

Foreign Borrowings
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ACA-C

Actual
2022 2021
Rs. Rs.
28,531,110 37,896,872
842,279,000 827,560,000
34,532,818 31,441,300
1,294,928 2,909,695

906,637,856

899,807,867

847,625,388
3,531,244
6,501,587

27,652,086
2,866,805

783,380,017
3,438,952
412,650
33,504
28,943,824
6,012,754

888,177,110

822,221,701

18,460,746 77,586,166
4,132,893 4,114,813
619,430 319,955
4,752,323 4,434,768
23,213,069 82,020,934
23,213,069 82,020,934
-18,460,746 -77,586,166
0 0




Grants Received
Total Cash generated from Financing Activities (H)

Less - Cash disbursed for:

Repayment of Local Borrowings

Repayment of Foreign Borrowings

Total Cash disbursed for Financing Activities (I)

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (J)=(H)-(1)

Net Movement in Cash (K) = (G) + (J)
Opening Cash Balance as at 01st January
Closing Cash Balance as at 31st December

Statement of Imprest Reconciliation

ACA-7

Revenue Collected by Other Entities on behalf of
Reporting Entity

Expenditure incurred by Reporting Entity on behalf of
Other Entities

Debits made to Advance "B" Account on behalf of
Other Entities

Credits made to Advance "B" Account by Other
Entities

Adjusting an interest charged in 2021 which was
recorded as a recovery of a loan installment.

6,618,727

3,326,660

768

Less:

Revenue Collected by Reporting Entity on behalf of
Other Entities

Expenditure incurred by Other Entities on behalf of
Reporting Entity

Credits made to Advance "B" Account on behalf of
Other Entites

Rectifying the entry under Receipts in Advance B
Account, which was recorded by mistake when settling
the loan balance during the year 2021.

Debits made to Advance "B" Account by Other
Entities

33,400,572
1,178,316

5,653,970

134,327

9,946,155

40,367,185

Imprest Adjustment Balance as at 31st December
2022

(30,421,030)

* Any Items can be added in addition to the above
mentioned items if appilicable.
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3.2 Financial Statements

Revenue Estimate Collected Revenue
Revenue Description of the Original Final A As a % of
Code Revenue Code Estimate Estimate Erqosu)nt Final Revenue
Rs. Rs. ' Estimate
20.02.02.99 | Interest - Other 4million 4million 4.1 million 100
Sales and Fees - 0.03
20.03.02.99 | Administrative fees and | 0.05million | 0.05million miilion 60
payments
20.03.99.00 | Sales and Fees - Other | 45 aion | 3omitlion | Smillion 25
Receipts
20.02.01.01 | Rent for Quarters 1.3 million | 1.3 million 125 96
million
20.04.01.00 | Widows and Orphans 20 million | 20 million 19million 95
20.06.02.02 | Capital Sales (Other) 1.5 million | 1.5 million m(i)i?iin 62
3.2.1. Revenue collection performance
Not relevant.
3.2.2. Performance of the Utilization of Allocation
Rs. ,000
Type of Actual Utilization as a
Allocation Original Final Estimate | Expenditure Rs. % of Final
Estimate Rs. Rs. Allocation
Recurrent 867,240,000 867,240,000 852,334,949 98%
Capital 61,000,000 61,000,000 23,213,069 38%

3.2.3. Allocation made to this Department / District Secretariat / Provincial Council in

terms of F.R. 208 as a representative of other Ministries / Departments

Rs. ,000

Allocation N
8=57%
Serial Purpose of _ Actu § cSS%8
No. | Ministry/ Department the First Last al |=£8iT § ?El
' received allocations | Allocation | Allocat | Allocat | cost |5 S5 = §
ion ion 2 <O

<

01 Department of Pensions 314 314 314 100
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3.2.4. Performance of the Reporting of Non-Financial Assets

Rs. ,000
Balance as | Balance as per
per Board financial Reporting
Assets Code Description of Survey Position Yetto be Progress as
Code Accounted
Reportas at | Report as at a%
31.12.2022 31.12.2022
9151 Building and Structures 246,310 246,310 100%
9152 Machinery 801,832 801,832 100%
9153 Land 1,091,666 1,091,666 100%
9154 Intangible Assets - -
9155 Biological Assets - -
9160 Work in Progress - 66,208
9180 Lease Assets - -
3.2.5 Report of the Auditor General
PIC/B/EC/2/22/27 29t May 2023

Commissioner General of Elections,

Election Commission.

Head 020 - Compilation Report of the Auditor General on Financial Statements of the
Election Commission for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 as per Section 11(1) of the
National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.

The audit of the financial statements of the Head 020 Election Commission for the year
ended 31 December 2022 comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022 and the statement of financial performance and cash flow for the year ending from that
date was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154(1) of the
Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read in conjunction with
provisions of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018. In terms of Sub-section 11(1) of the
National Audit Act, No.19 of 2018, this report including my comments and observations on
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the financial statements issued to the Election Commission. In accordance with Section 11(2)
of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the annual detailed management audit report is
issued to the Chief Accounting Officer in due course. Auditor General’s report which should
be read in conjunction with Article 154(6) of the Constitution of the Democratic Socialist
Republic of Sri Lanka will be submitted to Parliament in near future in terms of Section 10 of
the National Audit Act, No.19 of 2018.

I am of the opinion that, except for the effect of the matters set out in section 1.6 of this
report, the financial statements reflect a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Election Commission as at 31 December 2022 and its financial performance and cash flow
for the year then ended in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

1.2 Basis for Qualified Opinion

My opinion is qualified based on the facts given in paragraph 1.6 of this report. 1 have
conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My
responsibilities in relation to financial statements are further described in the section entitled
Auditor’s Responsibilities. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is reasonable and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

1.3 Responsibilities of Chief Accounting Officer for the Financial Statements

Chief Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
provisions in Section 38 of the National Audit Act, No.19 of 2018 and for such internal
control is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As per Sub-section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the Commission is
required to maintain proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and
liabilities, to enable annual and periodic financial statements to be prepared.

As per Sub-section 38 (1) (c) of the National Audit Act, the Chief Accounting Officer shall
ensure that effective internal control system for the financial control of the Commission
exists and carry out periodic reviews to monitor the effectiveness of such systems and
accordingly make any alterations as required for such systems to be effectively carried out.

1.4 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
Auditor General’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
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assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Sri Lanka
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also,

« In providing a basis for the audit opinion expressed, appropriate audit procedures
were planned and executed to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Evaluate the structure and content of the financial statements containing the
disclosures and the transactions and events that underlie the financial statements in an
appropriate and reasonable manner.

I will keep the Chief Accounting Officer informed of any important audit findings, | have
identified during my audit, including key internal control weaknesses and other issues.

1.5 Report on Other Legal Requirements

As required by Sub-section 6 (1)(d) of the National Audit Act, No.19 of 2018, | state the
followings.

(@) As per the following audit observation, the financial statements submitted for
audit were not reconciled with the financial statements of the previous year,

Audit observations Reference to paragraph
of this report

There are differences when comparing the balances 1.6.2 (a)

of the audited financial statements of the previous

year with the opening balances of the year under

review.

(b) My recommendations on financial statements relating to the previous year have
been implemented.
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1.6 Comments on Financial Statements

(@)

(b)

Employee loan interest of Rs.4,132,893 which should be shown under cash flow
generated from operating activities in the cash flow statement was shown under
cash flow generated from investing activities.

Non-revenue receipts of Rs 28,531,110 were shown under fees, surcharges,
fines and licenses in the cash flow statement.

1.6.2 Non-Financial Assets

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

When comparing the closing balances of non-financial assets in the previous
year's audited financial statements with the opening balances of the year under
review, the balance of unfinished buildings was 05 million rupees less, the
balance of vehicles was 58.33 million rupees more and the balance of other
machinery and equipment was10.26 million rupees less.

Goods worth Rs. 6,717,017 identified in the 2021 goods survey were disposed in
2022 but the value was not accounted for.

The balance of non financial assets worth Rs. 255,459,809 was under-recorded
due to non-accounting through CIGAS computer system of Kurunegala District
Election Office, office residence of Deputy Commissioner of Elections of
Gampaha District, Glen Arber land, land and building adjacent to Heen Ela
assessed by Government Assessor.

The Office of the Assistant Commissioner of Elections and Tourist Bungalow in
Nuwara Eliya District had an estimated value of Rs. 3,118,000, but it was
accounted as Rs. 3,700,000, resulting in an excess of Rs. 582,000 in non-
financial assets.

Though Rs. 40,950,000, the value of office residence of Assistant Commissioner
of Elections in Hambantota District and the Badulla District Election Office,
which were not belong to the Commission, have to be removed from CIGAS
system it has not been removed in the year under review.

Financial Assets

Although the balance of Advanced B account of Public Servants as on 31 December
2021 was Rs. 100,974,010, the opening balance of Advanced B account of Public
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Servants in Form ACA 5 in the financial statement 2022 was stated as Rs.
101,108,337.

1.6.4 Lack of Evidence for Audit
No individual balance statement has been submitted for audit to confirm the accuracy
of the balance of Rs.33,269,017 received from other sources shown in the statement
of ACA-3 Imprest Account.

2. Financial Review

Due to non-preparation of expenditure estimates in accordance with Financial
Regulations 50, there were savings of Rs.288,601 and Rs.20,319,312 respectively in
one recurrent object and 02 capital objects.

2.2 Access to Liabilities and Commitments

The following observations were made.
(@) The balance of provision related to 06 objects was Rs. 2,300,891 and their
liabilities were Rs. 82,051,96, so the balance excess was Rs. 79,751,076.

(b) The total liabilities of Rs. 63,132,679 related to 07 objects are not mentioned in
the statement of liabilities and Commitments in Annexure iii.

3. Operating Review

Since the 2022 Action Plan included the celebration of VVoter's Day, the necessary
banners could have been prepared in a proper manner with a prior plan, but
considering it as an urgent need, procurement activities were done following the
shopping method to prepare 730 banners and the suppliers were given only 2 days
to submit bids even though the minimum period for inviting bids is 07 days as per
paragraph 6.2.2 of the Government Procurement Guidelines.
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(b) Purchase of an Additional Generator for the Data Center

Q) Bids for this procurement were invited from 08 suppliers on 22 April 2022
and the deadline for submission of procurement applications was fixed as
13 May. Although the date was later revised to 20 May 2022, the suppliers
were notified in this regard on 18 May 2022, two days before the closing
date for submission of bids.

(i) As per Section 6.3.2 of the Government Procurement Guidelines, the
receipt of bids shall be closed by the time specified in the bid documents
and late bids shall not be accepted, but the selected supplier submitted its
bid on 21 May 2022, although the closing date for receipt of bids for this
contract is 20 May 2022.

(iii)  Rs.4,767,000 was paid on 30" December of the year under review out of
the tax free value of Rs.6,912,420 without confirmation from the electrical
engineer that the purchased generator conforms to the relevant
specifications.

(iv)  Rs. 2,500,000 was earmarked for this purpose during the year under
review, but its actual value was Rs.6,912,420, so the price had increased
by 176 percent over the estimated value and the procurement plan was not
revised accordingly.

(V) Without a prior approval Rs. 66,000 rupees were paid for an external
agency to disable and restore the servers in the data center to install the
generator.

(C)  Construction of a Shed to Install the Generator

Q) Bids for this contract were invited 2 1/2 months after the contract was
awarded for the purchase of the generator and the contract was
awarded to the company that purchased the generator in 2022, which
was not a registered supplier.

(i)  Although bids were invited for this contract on 18 October 2022, the
company awarded the contract submitted an estimate on 08 September
2022, before the invitation for bids.

(ili)  The contract value of Rs 795,000 was more than 38 per cent higher
than the estimate submitted by the technical officer.

3.2  Asset Management

(@ The generator of Puttalam District Election Office remained idle for more than
06 years without use.
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(b)

(©)

According to the goods survey report of the year 2021, the investigations were
not conducted and the losses were not recovered in accordance with the
financial regulations regarding a mobile phone that was misplaced in the Galle
District Election Office.

Various types of toners, ribbons, and master roll inks worth Rs. 12,848,164
purchased without proper planning to be used for several elections were
remained idle in the warehouse without use.

Losses and Damages

Q) Action was not taken during the year to recover Rs. 151,192 related to 03
motor accidents that occurred during the year under review. Also, the value of
damages that could not be recovered and could not be written off from the
books due to road accidents in 2019, 2020 and 2021 is Rs. 2,598,736.

(i)  The balance of Rs.2,671,428 carried forward as on 31* December, 2022 was
not mentioned in Annexure ii of the statement of writing off books.

Management Weaknesses

According to Section 4 of the Budget Circular No. 03/2021 dated 21 December 2021 issued
under the title Authorization of expenditure and management of public expenditure during the
year 2022, it has been emphasized that since public financial management in 2022 is in a
challenging situation there should be good supervision regarding expenditure control.
However, the Commission spent Rs. 4,585,147 on hotel fees, announcements, event
management and preparation of banners for the voter day program.

4. Human Resource Management

4.1

Staff VVacancies

By 31 December 2022, 06 senior level posts, 09 tertiary level posts, 42 secondary level posts
and 29 primary level posts in the Commission were vacant.

H.S.S. Perera

Senior Assistant Auditor General

For the Auditor General
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Chapter 04 - Performance indicators

Performance indicators of the Institute (Based on the Action Plan)

Specific Indicators

Actual output as a percentage (%) of the expected output

%90 - %100

%89-%75

%74-%50

90%
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Chapter 05 - Performance in achieving Sustainable Development Goals (SDGSs)

Goal No. Goals & Target Time | Indicators of the Progress/
Objectives frame | achievement Present
status
05. To bring [5.1. to achieve | 5.1.1.Amendm To ensure that the | Submitting
about gender | women’s ents to relevant women the relevant
equality and | representation at | legislations 001 Representation proposals to
empower all | the national/ remains at 25% the
: 2025 .
women and | legislature level Parliamentary
girls. Select
Committee
5.5.to provide 5.5.1. To Proposals
equal increase  the have been
opportunities and | women 2001 submitted to
leadership to representation the
: . . 2025 .
women in in  executive Parliamentary
decision making | bodies of Select
in political, political parties Committee
economic, and 5.5.2.to
general life increase  the In progress
matters and to number of
ensure their female officers | - 2021 -
effective serving in| 2025
participation executive grade
posts in the
Commission
10. To | 10.2.0 Put in place an Preperation of an | In progress
mitigate Empowering, all-  inclusive electoral register
inequality in | inclusion and electoral inclusive of all
and among | improving all system eligible citizens
countries sociely,
economically, and
_polltlcall_y 01
irrespective of
. 2025
their gender, age,
ethnicity,
disability,
religion,
nationality,
economic or other
status by 2030.
16. Creation | 16.7. Ensuring an | 16.7.2The size Formulation  of | In progress
of a peaceful | all-inclussive, of the the Action Plan
and participatory, population who of the Election
wholesome representative are  confident Commission with
society for decision- that they will | -2021 | the participation
sustainable makingprocess at | be included in| 2025 | of all
development, | all levels the  decision- stakeholders
providing all making process
with based on
opportunities gender,  age,
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for justice
and
establishment
of

disability, and
ethnicity and
their ideas will

be responded

responsible, to.
effective
institutions at
all levels
17. 17.8 Fully Use of modern —To register in | The
Revitalizing | operationalize the | technology for the electoral | preliminary
the global technology bank | election register. work has been
partnership and science, | process. — To develop data | completed
for technology  and system of al
sustainable innovation public officers
development. | capacity-building who contribute
mechanism  for towards the
least  developed election
countries by 2017 —2021 | process.
and enhance the 2025 | -To assign
use of enabling election duties
technology, ~in accordingly.
particular ~To establish a
information and call centre to
communications address the
technology. issue that come
up in  the
preparation  of
electoral rolls
17.16 Enhance the | Development - Conducting Acting in
global partnership | of a  data awareness relation to
for sustainable | system programmes | each year
development, inclusive of all on election | relating to the
complemented by | stakeholders laws for | year of
multi-stakeholder officials, operation
partnerships that security
mobilize and personnel and
share knowledge, general public
expertise,
technology  and —2021
financial 2025
resources, to
support the
achievement  of
the  sustainable

development
goals in all
countries, in
particular
developing
countries
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5.1 Sustainable Development Goals Identified

Obiectives/Target Target Success % of achieving success until now
Jectivestiargets argets Indicators | 0%-49% | 50%-74% | 75%-100%
See Chapter 05 - Overall 5%
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Chapter 06 — Human Resource Profile

6.1. Cadre Management

Approved Cadre Existing Cadre \(/éiggszi)ef*/
Senior >6 48 08
Tertiary 21 13 08
Secondary 502 460 42
Primary 227 198 29

The entire staff of the Election Commission consists of the following staff members. In
addition to the five members, including the Chairman of the Election Commission, there is a
Secretary to the Commission. Apart from them, the staff of the Election Commission
includes, the Commissioner-General of Elections, officers of the Sri Lanka Administrative
Service (SLAS), officers of the Sri Lanka Accountants Service (SLAcS), Legal Director and
Legal Officers, officers of the Sri Lanka Information and Communication Technological
Service (SLICTS), officers of the Sri Lanka Planning Service (SLPS), Translators, Officers in
the Supra Grade of the Public Management Service, and non-staff gradeofficersof the Public
Management Service, officers of the Development Officers’ Service, IT Assistants,
Document Assistants, Office Employees, and Drivers. Accordingly, the total staff of the

Election Commission as at 31.12.2022 is as follows.

Number

Staff Officers

(Except the Chairman and Members of the Election Commission) 61
Officers of the Public Management Service 358
Development Officers 38
Technical Officer (Civil) 01
IT Assistants 10
Document Assistants 46
Receptionist 01
Office Assistants 155
Drivers 43
Cleaner 01

6.2 Establishments Matters of Staff Officers of the Commission

Establishment matters pertaining to Staff officers of the Commission during the period under

review are as follows —
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6.2.1. New appointments.

The following are the appointments made by the Election Commission up to 31.12.2022 in
relation to filling the vacancies in the posts of staff officers who were employed in the

Election Commission and the vacancies arising due to transfers.

« Vacant post of Chief Financial Officer of Election Commission:

Mr. K. S. P. Perera, Special Grade of Accountants’ Service, who was transferred to this
Commission by the letter No. MPub/AD/AcSD/02/ 1628 dated 22.12.2021 from the Secretary
to the Ministry of Public Services, Provincial Councils and Local Government, was appointed
as the Chief Financial Officer on 06.01.2022.

®,

«+ Vacant post of the Assistant Commissioner of Elections in the Kegalle District
Election Office:

Mr. K.H.M.S.P. Kasthurisinghe, Grade 11l of the Sri Lanka Administrative Service, who was
transferred by the letter No. 75/10/5732 dated 28.01.20220f the Secretary to the Ministry of
Public Services, Provincial Councils and Local Government, was appointed as Kegalle

District Assistant Commissioner of Elections with effect from 02.07.2022.

«+ Vacant Posts of the Assistant Commissioner of Elections in the Ampara and

Puttalam District Election Offices and the post of Assistant Secretary:

The following three Grade 11l officers of the Sri Lanka Administrative Service who were
transferred by the letter No. R/I/I/POSTING/2020(2021)dated02.02.2022 of the Secretary to
the Ministry of Public Services, Provincial Councils and Local Government were appointed
to the following vacant posts from 14.03.2022.

e Mrs. T. Suvarna — Appointed as Assistant Secretary (Election Commission).
e Mr. S. L. R. Jayanayake— Appointed as Assistant Commissioner of Elections

of Puttalam District.
e Mr. AL M. K. S. Attanayake - Appointed as Assistant Commissioner of

Elections of Ampara District.
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«» Vacant post of Assistant Commissioner of Elections in Mannar District Election
Office:

Mr. V. Sivaraja, Grade 11l of the Sri Lanka Administrative Service, who was transferred by
the letter No. 75/10/6329dated 25.10.2022 of the Secretary to the Ministry of Public Services,
Provincial Councils and Local Government, was appointed as Assistant Commissioner of
Elections of Mannar District with effects from 14.11.2022.

« Vacant Post of the Assistant Director (Planning) :

Mrs. S. P. Senarath, Grade 111 of the Sri Lanka Planning Service (on surplus basis), who was
transferred by letter No. MPA/PSD/C2/40dated 05.12.2022 of the Secretary of the Ministry
of Public Services, Provincial Councils and Local Government, was appointed as the

Assistant Director (Planning) of the Election Commission.

6.2.2. Releases

The following are the staff officers who have been released from the service of the Election

Commission.
% Mr. S. W. Welgama, Sri Lanka Administrative Service Il - Released to Department
of Motor Traffic from 02.02.2022.
% Mr. H.L.LR.Hathursinghe, Sri Lanka Administrative Service Il - Released to the

Department of Posts from 18.02.2022.

% Mr. S. Sudakaran, Sri Lanka Administrative Service | - Released to Ministry of Home
Affairs from 31.05.2022.

% Mr. W. G. W. Gnanadayalan, Sri Lanka Administrative Service Ill - Release to the
Ministry of Health from 01.06.2022.

6.2.3. Internal transfers
s After considering the request made by Mrs. A.A. Anandi, who is working as the

Assistant Secretary of the Election Commission, she was transferred as the Assistant
Commissioner of Elections of Gampaha District from 01.03.2022.
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L)

As per the request made by Mr. K. Kandeepan, who is serving as Assistant
Commissioner of Elections of Mullaitivu District of the Election Commission, he has
been transferred as Assistant Commissioner of Elections of Badulla district from
07.03.2022.

After considering further matters regarding the request made by Mr. K. Vimalaruban,
who is working as Assistant Commissioner of Elections of Mannar District of the
Election Commission, he was transferred as Assistant Commissioner of Elections of
Kilinochchi District from 01.08.2022.

. Appontments made to cover up duties and to act in the posts

The following officers were appointed to cover their dutiesuntil the return of the
following officers who went out of the island from 13.02.2022 to 20.02.2022 to
participate in the capacity development workshop on voter awareness held in New
Delhi, India

Name of the Officer Persons appointed to cover duties

Mr. B.M.P.G.P.V. Bandara
Additional Commissioner of Elections
(Admin)

Mr. K.M.G.S.N.Kaluwewa
Additional Commissioner of Elections
(Local Authorities)

Mr. H.D.N. Sampath Fernando
Deputy Commissioner of Elections
(Kandy)

Mr. P.S. Pathirana
Assistant  Commissioner
(Matale)

of Elections

Mr. S.H.Y.S. Boraless
Assistant Commissioner
(National Elections)

of Elections

Ms. KumariniPrathapasinghe
Assistant Commissioner of Elections
(Legal)

Mr. K. Wimalaruban
Assistant Commissioner
(Mannar)

of Elections

Mr. J. Jeniton
Assistant  Commissioner
(Vavuniya)

of Elections

Vavuniya District Assistant Commissioner of Elections Mr. J.Jeniton was appointed to
cover the duties from 07.03.2022 until a suitable officer is appointed for the vacancy in
Mullaitivu District Election Office.

Jaffna District Assistant Commissioner of Elections Mr. R.C. Amalraj has been

appointed to cover the duties from 30.05.2022 until a suitable officer is appointed for

the vacancy in the Kilinochchi District Election Office.
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L)

Polonnaruwa District Assistant Commissioner of Elections Ms. A.D.P.N.Artigala was
appointed to cover the duties of the post of Trincomalee District Assistant

Commissioner of Elections from 01.09.2022 until a permanent officer is appointed.

Anuradhapura District Assistant Commissioner of Elections Mr. K. Mugundan has
been appointed to cover the duties of Polonnaruwa District Assistant Commissioner of
Elections from 12.06.2022 to 16.06.2022 due to Ms. A.D.P.N. Artigala, Polonnaruwa
District Assistant Commissioner of Elections participating in a knowledge exchange

program in Kathmandu, Nepal.

As Monaragala District Assistant Commissioner of Elections was on special leave from
25.08.2022 to 13.09.2022, Badulla District Assistant Commissioner of Elections Mr. K.
Kandeepan was appointed as Monaragala District Assistant Commissioner of Elections

for that period.

As Mr. M.B.M. Sufyan went abroad due to personal matter, Ampara District Assistant
Commissioner of Elections Mr. AM.K.S. Attanayake was appointed as Batticaloa
District Assistant Commissioner of Elections from 16.09.2022 to 06.10.2022 to cover

his duties.

Additional Commissioner of Elections (National Elections) Mr. H. R.P. Peiris has been
appointed to cover the duties of the post of Commissioner General of Elections from
02.12.2022 to 06.12.2022 due to the departure of Commissioner General of Elections
Mr. Saman Sri Ratnayake to observe the Gujarat state polls.

6.3. Activities of Administration Division

Establishment Branch

The Establishment Division functions under the supervision of Additional Commissioner of

Elections (Administration) and Assistant Commissioner of Elections (Administration).

Accordingly, the Election Commission Office is operated by the Administrative Officer and

consists of 02 chief Management Service Officers and ten Management Service Officers and

a female Document Assistant. Furthermore, there is also a reception window that is

conducted by the Administrative Officer and supervised by the chief Management Service

Officer. The main tasks of this department are all institutional affairs of the non-staff officers
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of the Elections Secretariat and 27 district election offices in the island and the establishment

and administration and the supervision of cleanliness and security of the Election

Commission.

6.3.1

Staffing

6.3.1.1 Management Service Officers’ Service

Under the 2022 annual transfers, three Management Service Officers were transferred
out of the Election Commission, and theirreplacements wwere reported to the service.
Under the Inter-Departmental Transfers, 18 Management Service Officers who
wished to get transferred to the Commission were transferred with the approval of the
Election Commission.

Eight Management Service Officers were transferred out of the Election Commission

without replacements.

6.3.1.2 Development Officers’ Service

Two bureaucrats of the Development Officers’ Service who expressed interest to
come to this Commission under inter-departmental transfers were transferred on the
approval of the Election Commission.

Two officials of the Development Officer Service were transferred out of the Election

Commission without replacements.

6.3.1.3 Driver Service

Five people in the driving service who expressed interest to come to this commission
under inter-departmental transfers were transferred on the approval of the Election
Commission.

One driver was transferred out of the Election Commission without replacements.

6.3.1.4 Office Employee Service

Four office staff employees were transferred out of the Election Commission without

replacements.
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6.3.1.5 Recruitment for the post of Technical Officer (Civil).

e An advertisement was published on the Commission's website inviting applications
for the recruitment of a retired officer for the vacant post of Technical Officer (Civil)
in the Election Commission. Accordingly, among those who submitted applications,
Mr. Nimal Karunaratne, who passed the qualification test, was recruited on contract
basis for the post of Technical Officer (Civil) for a period of one year from
19.04.2022.

6.3.1.6 Resignation from Public Service

Ms. R.M.P.G.H.B. Ratnayake, Grade Il of Class 3 of Sri Lanka Information and
Communication Technology Service attached to the Elections Secretariat resigned
from the public service on 06.08.2022due to personal reasons.

6.3.1.7 Interdiction

e Mr. R. Nagaratnam, Office Employees' Service Ill, attached to the Nuwara Eliya
District Elections Office was subjected to compulsory leave from 10.11.2021 to
09.12.2021 and thereupon interdicted from 10.12.2021.

6.3.1.8 Conducting Efficiency Bar

e The efficiency bar examination for eleven Grade I, Il and I1I Drivers of the Combined
Drivers’ Service was held on 08.09.2022 at the Elections Secretariat, and all the
drivers who appeared for it passed the efficiency bar examination.

6.3.1.9 Covering up the duties in the Vacant Posts.

Measures were taken to obtain the services of casual employees from time to time to
assist in covering duties in vacant posts and in carrying out the duties relating to the

revision of electoral regsisters.

6.3.1.10 Retirement
One Staff Officer, nine Officers in the Management Service Officers’ Service,
oneemployee in the Office Employees' Service, four Employees in the Drivers’

Service and the employee who held the position of Cleanerof the Election
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Commission retired in the year 2022. The work on the retirement files of the sixteen
retired persons was completed. The detailed report on the retired officers and
employees is included as Note 32. We greatly appreciate the support and dedication of
all those officials for the successful completion of the targeted activities of the

Department of Elections / Election Commission.

6.4 Janitorial Work

The term of the agreement signed with Canary Super Cleaning (Pvt) Ltd, which
attended to janitorial work on the premises of the Elections Secretariat, expired on
28.02.2022, and steps were taken to publish a newspaper advertisement to call for
competitive bids to provide janitorial services for a period of one year under the
National Competitive Bidding. Accordingly, Deepthi Cleaning Services has submitted
the lowest bid. Therefore, an Agreement was signed with Deepthi Cleaning Services
to carry out janitorial work from 01.03.2022 to 28.02.2023.

6.5 Security Services

The term of the agreement signed with Iron Arms Security Service (Pvt.) Ltd., which
attended to security work on the premises of the Elections Secretariat and District
Elections Offices, expired on 28.02.2022, and steps were taken to publish a
newspaper advertisement to call for competitive bids to provide security services for a
period of one year under the National Competitive Bidding. Accordingly, the
Commercial Field Security Service (Pvt) Ltd has submitted the lowest bid. Therefore,
an Agreement was signed with the Commercial Field Security Service (Pvt) Ltd. to
carry out security services from 01.03.2022 to 28.02.2023.

6.6. Foreign Training and Scholarships
From 01.01.2022 to 31.12.2022, 09 officers participated in the training courses.

No. | Matter Duration | Country | Name Designation
held
1 Capacity From India Mr. B.M.P.G.P.V. | Add. C.E. (Admin)
Building in | 13.02.2022 Bandara
Voter to Mr. H.D.N. Sampath | D.C.E. (Kandy)
Education 18.02.2022 Fernando
Mr. S.H. Sreen Yapa | Asst. C.E. (National
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Boralessa Elections)
Mr. K. Wimalaruban Asst. C.E. (Mannar)
2 Capacity From India Mr. K.M.G.S.N. Add. C.E. (Local
Building in | 19.03.2022 Kaluwewa Authorities)
Voter to Mr. R.M.H.B. D.C.E. (Kurunegala)
Registration | 26.03.2022 Ratnayake
Mr.W.W.K. Jayaweera | D.C.E. (Kalutara)
Fernando
Mr. K.A.L. Asst. C.E. (Nuwara
Kalugampitiya Eliya)
3 Australia From Nepal Ms. A.D.P.N. Atigala | Asst. C.E.
Awards — | 12.06.2022 (Polonnaruwa)
South Asia | to
and 16.06.2022
Mongolia
Regional
Alumni
Workshop

6.7 Local Training

From 01.01.2022 to 31.12.2022, officials participated for 13 local training courses through
online and physically and the information about it is included in Note 33.

The local authorities elections held in 2018 was the first election held using the mixed
member proportional system and many significant changes in the polling system were
introduced in this system. Also, the Election Commission has suggested to the
Parliamentary Selection Committee, which has been appointed to make recommendations
regarding the electoral system, that the system of polls other than the presidential election

should be mixed and proportional.

Accordingly, a training program was arranged according to the proposal that it is
appropriate to organize a practical training program for the District Deputy and Assistant
Commissioners of Elections regarding the holding of an election under the mixed member

proportional system as a preparation for the local authorities elections to be held soon.

Based on the local authorities election held in the year 2018, this training program was
planned for the exchange of experience on how it was conducted, the experiences gained,
the ways in which errors should be improved, and the review of innovations etc. and the

main aim of this training was to provide good clear information to the District Deputy and
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Assistant Commissioners of Elections who were recently recruited to the Election

Commission.

Accordingly, this residential training program was conducted on the 26th, 27th, 28th and
29th of June 2022 in Nuwara Eliya with the participation of 57 officers of the Election
Commission and the International Institute of Elections sponsored the accommodation and

technical facilities.
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Chapter 07 — Compliance Report

: Remedial
Compliance If not
. . Status complied, measures
No. Applicable Requirement Complied/Not | reasons proposed to avo_ld
) : . noncompliance in
complied in brief
future
1 Following Financial Statements
have been submitted on due date
1.1 Annual financial statements Complied - -
1.2 Advances to public officers’ account Complied - -
Advances to Enterprises and
1.3 productions Accounts (Commercial | Not applicable - -
Advance Accounts)
1.4 Stores Advance Accounts Not applicable - -
1.5 Special Advances Accounts Not applicable - -
1.6 Other Not applicable - -
) Maintaining Books and Registers
(FR 445)
Updating and maintaining the Fixed
2.1 Assets Register as per P.A. Circular Complied - -
No. 267/2018
29 Updating and maintaining the Complied ] ]
personal emoluments register/cards
73 Updatmg_and maintaining the audit Complied ] i
query register
24 _Updatmg an_d maintaining the Complied ] ]
internal audit report register
Preparation of monthly accounts
summaries (CIGAS) and submitting .
2.5 them to the General Treasury on Complied i )
time
Updating and maintaining the .
2.6 Cheques and Cash Order register Complied i )
27 _Updatmg and maintaining the Complied ] ]
inventories register
o Updating and maintaining the Complied ) i
Inventory
29 Updating and maintaining the Complied ) i
damages and loss register
210 U_pdz_at_lng an(_j maintaining the Complied ) i
Liability register
Updating and maintaining the .
21 counterfoil register (GAN20) Complied i )
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Delegation of Functions for
financial control (FR 135)

3.1

Delegation of financial powers
within the institution

Complied

3.2

Creating awareness in the institution
on delegation of financial powers

Complied

3.3

Powers are delegated so that each
and every transaction is approved by
two or more officers

Complied

3.4

Using the Public Pay Slip package
subject to the control of the
Accountants as per the Public
Accounts Circular No. 171/2004,
dated 2014.05.11

Complied

Formulation of Annual Plans

4.1

Formulation of Annual Action Plan

Complied

4.2

Formulation of Annual Procurement
Plan

Complied

4.3

Formulation of Annual Internal
Audit Plan

Complied

4.4

Formulation of Annual Estimate and
submitting it to the Dept. of National
Budget (NDB) on due date

Complied

4.5

Submitting the Annual Cash Flow
Statement to the Dept. of Treasury
Operations on due date

Complied

Audit Queries

5.1

Answering all audit queries by the
date as specified by the Auditor
General

Complied

Internal Audit

6.1

Preparation of the Internal Audit
plan in consultations with the
Auditor General at the beginning of
the year as per FR 134(2)DMA/1-
2019

Complied

6.2

Answering every internal audit
report within a period of one month

Complied

6.2

Submitting copies of all internal
audit reports to the Dept. of
Management Audit as per Section
40(4) (e) of National Audit Act No.
19 0f 2018

Complied

6.4

Submitting copies of all internal
audit reports to the Auditor General
as per FR 134(3)

Complied
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Management Audit Committee

7.1

Conducting at least 4 Management
Audit Committee meetings during
the year under review as per DMA
Circular 1-2019.

Complied

Asset Management

8.1

Submitting information on the
purchase and misappropriation of
assets to the Controller General's
Office as per Chapter 07 of Asset
Management Circular No. 01/2017

Complied

8.2

Appointing a Liaison Officer to
coordinate the execution of the
provisions of Chapter 13 of the
above Circular and to report the
information about that officer to the
Controller General's Office.

Complied

8.3

Conducting board of surveys and
reports thereon submitted to the
Auditor general on the due date as
per Public Finance Circular No.
05/2016

Complied

8.4

Implementing recommendationson
excesses and deficiencies pointed out
in the Annual Board of Survey
within the period specified in the
Circular.

Complied

8.5

Disposal of damaged items as per FR
772

Complied

Vehicle Management

9.1

Preparation and submission to the
Auditor General on the due
dateofdaily running charts and
monthly summary reports for pool
vehicles.

Complied

9.2

Disposal of damaged vehicles less
than 6 months from being damaged

Complied
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Maintaining and updating vehicle
log books

Complied

9.4

Acting as per FR 103,104,109 and
110 in respect of every vehicular
accident

Complied

9.5

Re testing the fuel combustion of
vehicles as required by the P.A.
Circular No. 2016/30, dated
2016.12.29

Complied
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9.6

Acquiring the ownership of leased
vehicles in logbooks after the leased
period

Complied

10

Management of Bank Acconts

10.1

Bank reconciliations prepared,
certified and submitted for audit on
due dates

Complied

10.2

Settlement of defunct bank accounts
which were brought forward from
previous years in the year under
review

Complied

10.3

Action taken as per Financial
Regulations with regard to balances
that were disclosed by the bank
reconciliations a and were to be
adjusted and such balances were
settled within a period of one month

Complied

11

Utilization of Provisions

Incurring expenses from provisions
allocated without exceeding the
ceilings

Complied

11.2

As per F.R. 94(1), accrued liabilities
without exceeding the remaining
provisions at the end of the year a
upon the utilization of provisions
allocated.

Complied

12

Advances to Public Officers
Account

12.1

Compliance with the ceilings

Complied

12.2

Conducting periodical analysis of
outstanding loan balances

Complied

12.3

Settlement of loan balances that has
been outstanding for more than a
year

Complied

13

General Deposit Account

13.1

Action in accordance with FR 571
regarding expired deposits

Complied

13.2

Updating and maintaining the
administrative account for the
general deposits

Complied

14

Imprest Account

14.1

Forwarding the balance of the cash
book to the Treasury Operations
Department at

the end of the year under review.

Complied
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14.2

Settlement of ad-hoc imprest issued
under FR 371within one month after
the completion of that work
Immediate action issued

Complied

14.3

Issue ad-hoc imprest without
exceeding the approved ceiling as
per FR 371

Complied

14.4

Imprest account balance is
reconciled monthly with Treasury
Books

Complied

15

Revenue Account

15.1

Payments have been made from the
revenue collected in compliance with
relevant regulations

Complied

15.2

Revenue collected was not credited
to the deposit account but credited
directly to the revenue account

Complied

15.3

Forwarding returns of arrears of
revenue to Auditor general in terms
of R.R. 176

Complied

16

Human Resource Management

16.1

Maintaining the staff within the
limits of approved cadre

Complied

16.2

Every member of the staff has been
provided with a duty list in writing.

Complied

16.3

In terms of MSD Circular No
04/2017, dated 2017.09.20, all
reports have been submitted to the
Dept. of Management Services

Complied

17

Dissemination of information to
the Public

17.1

Appointing an Information Officer
and maintaining an information
register as per the Right to
Information Act and relevant
regulations

Complied

17.2

Information about the organization is
provided through its website and
facilitates the public to post
praises/allegations about the
organization through the website or
through alternative channels.

Complied

17.3

Submitting reports twice or once a
year as per Section 08 and 10of the
Right to Information Act

Complied

18

Implementation of the Citizens’
Charter

18.1

Formulation and implementation of
Citizens’/Service Receipients’

Complied
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Charter as per the P.A. Circular No.
05/2008 and 05/2018(1)

18.2

Institute has put in place a
mechanism to oversee the
formulation and implementation of
the Citizens’/Service Receipients’
Charter in terms of paragraph 2.3 of
the Circular

Complied

19

Formulation of Human Resource
Plan

19.1

Human Resource Plan has been
formulated based on the Specimen
appended to the P.A. Circular No.
02/2018, dated2018.01.24, as Annex
02.

Complied

19.2

The Human Resource Plan ensures
that not less than 12 hours of training
opportunities are provided to each
member of the staff

Complied

19.3

Annual performance agreements
have been singed for the entire staff
on the Specimen in Annex 01 of the
said Circular,

Complied

19.4

A senior officer has been appointed
with the responsibility to prepare the
human resource plan, develop
capacity building programmes, and
to implement skills development
programmes as per paragraph 6.5 of
the above circular.

Complied

20

Answering Audit Queries

20.1

Rectifying the shortcomings pointed
in the audit queries issued by the
Auditor General for the previous
year

Complied
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Chapter 08 — Conclusion

We are pleased to announce that the performance of the Election Commission in the year 2022
has been achieved through the successful completion of the tasks and functionsassigned to the

Commission.

Election Commission
Sarana Mawatha,

Rajagiriya.

On this 29""Day of May 2023
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Revision of Electoral Registers - 2021

Number of registered electors as per the 2021 electoral
register certified on January 07, 2022

Note 02

Electoral District

Number of Registered Votes

Colombo 1,735,315
Gampaha 1,814,507
Kalutara 985,948
Mahanuwara 1,151,796
Matale 416,249
Nuwara Eliya 586,089
Galle 879,992
Matara 667,904
Hambantota 503,184
Jaffna 572,446
Vanni 293,682
Batticaloa 427,125
Digamadulla 529,045
Trincomalee 297,946
Kurunegala 1,375,457
Puttalam 637,009
Anuradhapura 710,248
Polonnaruwa 339,428
Badulla 680,892
Moneragala 381,252
Ratnapura 895,944
Kegalle 694,188
Total 16,575,646
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Note 04

Revision of Electoral Registers - 2021

Claims and Objections under Section 14 of the Registration of Electors Act No.

44 of 1980
Claims Objections
Electoral District clc':l\ilrl;r:sfurj (I);te CI\ZIIl;rinr::;r?; Nu_mb(f:r of Nu.mbgr of
requests Late Requests objec.t ons objections
received Allowed received allowed
01 - Colombo 12034 9599 145 75
02 - Gampaha 5446 4656 77 63
03 - Kalutara 4482 2732 58 37
04 - Mahanuwara 2661 2277 61 34
05 - Matale 088 842 22 16
06 - Nuwara Eliya 728 596 5 0
07 - Galle 2881 2072 105 67
08 - Matara 1614 1283 11 5
09 - Hambantota 1662 1207 15 6
10 - Jaffna 3545 2448 7 6
11 - Vanni 2259 682 3 0
12 - Batticaloa 1509 858 59 36
13 - Digamadulla 965 703 31 22
14 - Trincomalee 1167 974 1 0
15 - Kurunegala 6551 4998 13 7
16 - Puttalam 1457 1404 3 1
17 - Anuradhapura 2093 1742 18 7
18 - Polonnaruwa 875 539 17 9
19 - Badulla 1581 1303 2 1
20 - Moneragala 970 637 25 12
21 - Ratnapura 6090 5224 36 16
22 - Kegalle 2577 1851 16 10
Total 64135 48627 730 430
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Revision of Electoral Registers - 2021

Number of names not registered due to dectection as multiple registrations
in each electorla district

Note 05

Electoral District

Number of Names Removed

01 - Colombo 6074
02 - Gampaha 6541
03 - Kalutara 2716
04 - Mahanuwara 4140
05 - Matale 1324
06 - Nuwara Eliya 2038
07 - Galle 2304
08 - Matara 1392
09 - Hambantota 1069
10 - Jaffna 3296
11 - Vanni 1141
12 - Batticaloa 1329
13 - Digamadulla 1906
14 - Trincomalee 1024
15 - Kurunegala 3665
16 - Puttalam 2323
17 - Anuradhapura 1183
18 - Polonnaruwa 1191
19 - Badulla 2241
20 - Moneragala 993
21 - Ratnapura 3171
22 - Kegalle 1792
Total 52853
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Revision of Electoral Registers - 2021

MNote 06

Number of persons who submitted their National Identity Card details

Number of people
Electoral District TOtaélre]gtTrier of oro d\:Jvcr:]eOtha;fional Percentage %
Identity Cards

01 - Colombo 1,735,315 1,713,699 98.75
02 - Gampaha 1,814,507 1,781,727 98.19
03 - Kalutara 085,948 966,033 97.98
04 - Mahanuwara 1,151,796 1,133,038 98.37
05 - Matale 416,249 407,738 97.96
06 - Nuwara Eliya 586,089 564,283 96.28
07 - Galle 879,992 863,277 98.10
08 - Matara 667,904 647,560 96.95
09 - Hambantota 503,184 492,177 97.81
10 - Jaffna 572,446 561,696 98.12
11 - Vanni 293,682 284,313 96.81
12 - Batticaloa 427,125 415,425 97.26
13 - Digamadulla 529,045 516,967 97.72
14 - Trincomalee 297,946 291,598 97.87
15 - Kurunegala 1,375,457 1,347,213 97.95
16 - Puttalam 637,009 620,341 97.38
17 - Anuradhapura 710,248 686,437 96.65
18 - Polonnaruwa 339,428 329,626 97.11
19 - Badulla 680,892 664,218 97.55
20 - Moneragala 381,252 371,734 97.50
21 - Ratnapura 895,944 873,516 97.50
22 - Kegalle 694,188 677,263 97.56
Total 16,575,646 16,209,879 97.79
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Revision of Electoral Registers - 2021

Note 07

Comparative Note on the No. of electors registered as per Electoral
Districts 2020-2021

Electoral District Total number of | Total number of [Increase (glecrease)
Electors - 2020 | Electors - 2021 |over previous year

1 - Colombo 1,724,061 1,735,315 11,254
2 - Gampaha 1,804,102 1,814,507 10,405
3 - Kalutara 981,364 985,948 4,584
4 - Mahanuwara 1,140,168 1,151,796 11,628
5 - Matale 413,096 416,249 3,153
6 - Nuwara Eliya 583,566 586,089 2,523
7 - Galle 876,391 879,992 3,601
8 - Matara 664,030 667,904 3,874
9 - Hambantota 499,586 503,184 3,598
10 - Jaffna 563,193 572,446 9,253
11 - Vanni 290,172 293,682 3,510
12 - Batticaloa 419,345 427,125 7,780
13 - Digamadulla 523,148 529,045 5,897
14 - Trincomalee 293,607 297,946 4,339
15 - Kurunegala 1,360,627 1,375,457 14,830
16 - Puttalam 628,640 637,009 8,369
17 - Anuradhapura 701,827 710,248 8,421
18 - Polonnaruwa 336,701 339,428 2,127
19 - Badulla 675,924 680,892 4,968
20 - Moneragala 377,688 381,252 3,564
21 - Ratnapura 888,722 895,944 7,222
22 - Kegalle 690,101 694,188 4,087
Total 16,436,059 16,575,646 139,587
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Note 08

Revision of Electoral Registers - 2021

Details of Assistant Registering Officers who have certified the

electoral register

Electoral District Assistant Registering Officers
Colombo P.A.S. Senaratne
Gampaha K.J.S. Madhava
Kalutara Kalindra Jayaweera Fernando
Mahanuwara H.D.N. Sampath Fernando
Matale P.S. Pathirana
Nuwara Eliya K.A.L.S. Kalugampitiya
Galle W.H. R. Vijayakumara
Matara T.W. Poshita Kaumadi
Hambantota Ravindra Subashana Wedage
Jaffna R.C. Amalraj
Vanni J. Jeniton
Batticaloa M.B.M. Sufyan
Digamadulla M.B.M. Sufyan
Trincomalee S. Sudakaran
Kurunegala R.M.H.B. Ratnayake
Puttalam B. M.1.S.1. Bandara
Anuradhapura K. Muhundan
Polonnaruwa Piyumi Atigala
Badulla Indika Hathurusingha
Moneragala N. Reagan
Ratnapura Suranga Ambagahatenne
Kegalle S.W. Welgama
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Note 09

Revision of Electoral Registers - 2022

Number of names deleting (“A” names) and entering (“B”
names) in respect of electoral districts

Electoral Districts | No. of ""A' Names No. of ""B"" Names
Colombo District 30,015 34.436
Gampaha 41,123 50,073
Kalutara 21,898 25,962
Kandy 23,070 30,081
Matale 8,687 11,243
Nuwara Eliya 8,998 11,569
Galle 18,305 21,304
Matara 12,491 16,590
Hambantota 8,557 10,841
Jaffna 8,767 15,027
Vanni 6,389 11,152
Batticaloa 9,764 16,145
Digamadulla 11,235 17,100
Trincomalee 7,709 12,397
Kurunegala 25,372 34,753
Puttalam 13,730 20,286
Anuradhapura 10,851 19,126
Polonnaruwa 6,066 8,665
Badulla 11,854 15,694
Moneragala 5,956 9,445
Ratnapura 15,667 20,971
Kegalle 12,466 14,288
Total 318,970 427,148
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Revision of Electoral Registers - 2022

Note 10

Number of registered electors as per the 2022 electoral register

certified on October 31, 2022

Electoral District Number of Registered Votes
Colombo 1,743,541
Gampaha 1,824,742
Kalutara 992,273
Mahanuwara 1,159,147
Matale 418,929
Nuwara Eliya 588,850
Galle 884,028
Matara 672,218
Hambantota 506,368
Jaffna 577,718
Vanni 298,015
Batticaloa 433,346
Digamadulla 534,145
Trincomalee 301,908
Kurunegala 1,385,703
Puttalam 643,279
Anuradhapura 717,482
Polonnaruwa 342,031
Badulla 684,521
Moneragala 384,888
Ratnapura 902,996
Kegalle 696,269
Total 16,692,397

108


ADMIN-PC
Stamp


MNote 11

96T 9¢€ 09T 1T V.9 VT'T | €2L'v¥S'ST 174" L6€269°0T elol
6 Z L T L0E0L 296°G29 9 ¥.9'9 692'969 a|ebay ¢g
TT 4 6 T 08€'89 9T9'vE8 8 G598 966'206 eindeuley T2
9 4 14 T L06'TL T86'CTE € 689°€ 888'78¢ e[ebelauoN  0g
6 4 L T 655'8S 296'G29 9 T9G'9 125789 e|jnpeg 6T
] 4 € 050°6¢ T86'CTE € 8.C°€ TE0'ere eMnJeUuo|od 8T
6 4 L T 025'T6 296'G29 9 ,/89 28Y'LTL eindeypeinuy 2T
8 Z 9 LTELT 296'G29 9 9979 6.2'€v9 weennd 9T
ST 4 €T 2Sv'6¢ TG2'9GE'T €T ¢8CET €0.'G8E'T efebauniny  GT
14 T € T ¥52'c6 ¥59°80¢ [4 768°¢ 806'T0OE g9Jewodull T
VA c S 0TG'CT GEQ'TCS S 0c¢T's SYT'veES e[inpeweblq €T
] T 14 8€09T 80€LTV 1% 125104 ove'eey eojeanleg ¢T
9 € € T T9E'68 #G9'80¢C 4 1G8°¢ 12E'Y0T GT0'86¢ IUUeA  TT
YA T 9 T €80'99 GE9'TCS ] 8€G'G 8T.',/S euyer Q0T
VA c S T 09068 80€'LTY 14 145104 89€'009 ejouequeH 6
YA T 9 9GZ oY 296'G29 9 eEvr9 8T¢'¢.9 elele\ g8
6 T 8 Z1v'6v 9T9'vES 8 V.v'8 820188 9|IeD /L
8 [4 9 T G12'29 GE9'TCS S vr9°'S 058885 eAl|g eremnN 9
S T 14 T29'T 80€'LTY 14 910V 626'8TY dleleN G
[A) T 1T 0GS'TT L6S/VT'T T TTTTT LVT'6ST'T elemnueyelN
0T T 6 0€E’'Eq €6'8€6 6 TTG6 €12'266 BlEINeY ¢
8T T LT €8T'TS 6GG°'€L.'T LT T6v'LT ZvL've8'T eyedue  Z
6T c LT T 60E'V. 2€2'699'T 9T ¢T. 9T TYS'ev.'T oquojoy T
(8+2)=6 8 (9+€)=2 9 (r-1)=¢ (ex2)=¥ (zm)=¢ (o9t/T)=2 T
Jagwinu
96 mﬁ_wv_t,q aoueeq mc_\nﬂ_:_m:c 2z0z Jarsibal
3yl Japun uo paseq X Jaquinu Jaquinu JaguinN [€40199]3 1011151 [e40129|3
[e101 polIoads [e101 Sl 10 aoueleg BuApenb BuiAijenb uo paseq BUIEND pal}i1482 T
SJaq AL 150WNN Uo paseq SdIA JO JaquinN 18d se 101993
JO JaguinN
JO JaguinN SdIA 10 JaquinN

uoININSU0) 8yl Jo (8)86 9191y Jad se 19141S1p |240199]8 YIea Ul Pauinial ag 01 SdIA JO Jaquunu 8yl JO UoIejnaed [enuuy

2202 - s1918160Y [©10193]3 JO UOISINSY

109


ADMIN-PC
Stamp


Note 12

Revision of Electoral Registers - 2022

Claims and Objections under Section 14 of the Registration of Electors Act No.

44 of 1980
Claims Objections
Electoral District cI;\il;r:Zri[:l ?;te clall\ilrl:]r:gﬁ;?;te Nu_mb(_er of Nu_mb(_er of
requests requests objec_tlons objections
received allowed received allowed
01 - Colombo 12,315 13,369 84 53
02 - Gampaha 6,613 6,487 45 36
03 - Kalutara 6,929 5,643 37 18
04 - Mahanuwara 3,589 3,200 31 12
05 - Matale 1,153 1,010 20 10
06 - Nuwara Eliya 1,648 1,713 4 3
07 - Galle 3,756 2,961 110 56
08 - Matara 2,294 1,949 4 2
09 - Hambantota 1,722 1,268 6 2
10 - Jaffna 2682 1788 10 8
11 - Vanni 1146 718 0 0
12 - Batticaloa 1,306 1,093 83 79
13 - Digamadulla 711 576 12 0
14 - Trincomalee 830 958 2 0
15 - Kurunegala 5,470 3,960 15 9
16 - Puttalam 2,062 1,847 1 1
17 - Anuradhapura 1,400 1,087 8 4
18 - Polonnaruwa 990 805 10 7
19 - Badulla 2,001 1,490 4 2
20 - Moneragala 1,121 749 17 14
21 - Ratnapura 6,250 4,663 25 13
22 - Kegalle 2,614 1,982 11 4
Total 68,602 59,316 539 333
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Revision of Electoral Registers - 2022

Number of names not registered due to dectection as multiple registrations

in each electorla district

Note 13

Electoral District Number of Names Removed
01 - Colombo 5989
02 - Gampaha 5203
03 - Kalutara 2443
04 - Mahanuwara 2795
05 - Matale 871
06 - Nuwara Eliya 1499
07 - Galle 1743
08 - Matara 1172
09 - Hambantota 706
10 - Jaffna 2337
11 - Vanni 1168
12 - Batticaloa 1070
13 - Digamadulla 1415
14 - Trincomalee 1293
15 - Kurunegala 2430
16 - Puttalam 1886
17 - Anuradhapura 2049
18 - Polonnaruwa 502
19 - Badulla 1651
20 - Moneragala 602
21 - Ratnapura 1776
22 - Kegalle 1218
Total 41821
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Mote 14

Revision of Electoral Registers - 2022

Number of persons who submitted their National Identity Card details

Electoral District

Total number of

Number of people
who have produced

Percentage %

electors National Identity
Cards

01 - Colombo 1,743,541 1,721,999 98.76
02 - Gampaha 1,824,742 1,791,996 98.21
03 - Kalutara 992,273 972,027 97.96
04 - Mahanuwara 1,159,147 1,140,471 98.39
05 - Matale 418,929 410,482 97.98
06 - Nuwara Eliya 588,850 566,623 96.23
07 - Galle 884,028 867,618 98.14
08 - Matara 672,218 652,289 97.04
09 - Hambantota 506,368 495,477 97.85
10 - Jaffna 577,718 567,652 98.26
11 - Vanni 298,015 288,553 96.82
12 - Batticaloa 433,346 421,825 97.34
13 - Digamadulla 534,145 521,784 97.69
14 - Trincomalee 301,908 295,660 97.93
15 - Kurunegala 1,385,703 1,358,085 98.01
16 - Puttalam 643,279 626,520 97.39
17 - Anuradhapura 717,482 694,040 96.73
18 - Polonnaruwa 342,031 332,439 97.20
19 - Badulla 684,521 667,658 97.54
20 - Moneragala 384,888 375,414 97.54
21 - Ratnapura 902,996 880,513 97.51
22 - Kegalle 696,269 679,664 97.62

Total 16,692,397 16,328,789 97.82
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Revision of Electoral Registers - 2022

Mote 15

Comparative Note on the No. of electors registered as per Electoral
Districts 2021-2022

Electoral District Total number of | Total number of [Increase (glecrease)
Electors - 2021 | Electors - 2022 |over previous year

1 - Colombo 1,735,315 1,743,541 8,226
2 - Gampaha 1,814,507 1,824,742 10,235
3 - Kalutara 985,948 992,273 6,325
4 - Mahanuwara 1,151,796 1,159,147 7,351
5 - Matale 416,249 418,929 2,680
6 - Nuwara Eliya 586,089 588,850 2,761
7 - Galle 879,992 884,028 4,036
8 - Matara 667,904 672,218 4,314
9 - Hambantota 503,184 506,368 3,184
10 - Jaffna 572,446 577,718 5,272
11 - Vanni 293,682 298,015 4,333
12 - Batticaloa 427,125 433,346 6,221
13 - Digamadulla 529,045 534,145 5,100
14 - Trincomalee 297,946 301,908 3,962
15 - Kurunegala 1,375,457 1,385,703 10,246
16 - Puttalam 637,009 643,279 6,270
17 - Anuradhapura 710,248 717,482 7,234
18 - Polonnaruwa 339,428 342,031 2,603
19 - Badulla 680,892 684,521 3,629
20 - Moneragala 381,252 384,888 3,636
21 - Ratnapura 895,944 902,996 7,052
22 - Kegalle 694,188 696,269 2,081
Total 16,575,646 16,692,397 116,751
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Note 16

Revision of Electoral Registers - 2022

Details of Assistant Registering Officers who have certified the

electoral register

Electoral District Assistant Registering Officers
Colombo P.A.S. Senaratne
Gampaha K.J.S. Madhava
Kalutara Kalindra Jayaweera Fernando
Mahanuwara H.D.N. Sampath Fernando
Matale P.S. Pathirana
Nuwara Eliya K.A.L.S. Kalugampitiya
Galle W.H. R. Vijayakumara
Matara T.W. Poshita Kaumadi
Hambantota Ravindra Subashana Wedage
Jaffna R.C. Amalraj
Vanni J. Jeniton
Batticaloa M.B.M. Sufyan
Digamadulla Kasun Srinath Attanayake
Trincomalee Piyumi Atigala
Kurunegala R.M.H.B. Ratnayake
Puttalam S.L.R. Jayanayake
Anuradhapura K. Muhundan
Polonnaruwa Piyumi Atigala
Badulla K. Kandeepan
Moneragala N. Reagan
Ratnapura Suranga Ambagahatenne
Kegalle Sajith P. Kasthurisinghe
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Note 18

Comparative Statement of the Percentage of Persons Submitting National Identity
Card Details in the Revision of the Electoral Registers for the Years 2013 - 2022

Electoral District

Percentage of the number of persons who submitted their National Identity Card
details in relation to each year

2013 | 2014 | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020 | 2021 | 2022

01 - Colombo 97.19] 97.53| 97.54| 98.10| 98.43| 98.49 98.61| 98.74| 98.75| 98.76
02 - Gampaha 95.39] 95.51| 95.96] 96.70| 97.35| 97.48| 98.01| 98.16[ 98.19| 98.21
03 - Mahanuwara 95.59| 96.32| 96.36f 97.17| 97.38] 97.53 97.88| 97.95| 97.98| 97.96
04 - Kandy 95.56| 97.25| 96.15| 96.65| 97.44| 97.69| 98.05[ 98.29| 98.37| 98.39
05 - Matale 94.35] 95.76] 95.76f 96.51| 97.16| 97.32( 98.18| 97.88] 97.96| 97.98
06 - Nuwara Eliya 92.66| 92.49| 94.03] 94.79] 95.10| 95.19| 96.55| 96.32| 96.28| 96.23
07 - Galle 95.18| 95.37| 95.76f 96.26] 96.74| 97.11 97.68| 98.03] 98.10| 98.14
08 - Matara 92.77| 94.72| 93.25| 94.56] 94.86] 95.29| 96.09| 96.86| 96.95| 97.04
09 - Hambantota 94.42] 95.33] 94.36f 95.84| 96.30| 96.53 97.28| 97.71] 97.81| 97.85
10 - Jaffna 87.09] 88.36] 90.33| 9256 93.27 93.6] 94.19] 98.16] 98.12| 98.26
11 - Vanni 87.96( 91.41| 92.46| 94.65| 95.49 95.9] 96.16f 96.79] 96.81| 96.82
12 - Batticaloa 91.58| 94.70| 94.15|] 95.53| 96.16| 96.33| 96.85| 97.17| 97.26] 97.34
13 - Digamadulla 93.97] 94.54| 95.05( 95.47| 96.57| 96.71 96.78| 97.67| 97.72| 97.69
14 - Trincomalee 92.09] 94.84| 94.90| 96.06] 96.11| 96.31| 97.18| 97.80| 97.87| 97.93
15 - Kurunegala 93.34] 94.50| 94.83| 96.03] 96.55| 96.96( 97.36|] 97.87| 97.95| 98.01
16 - Puttalam 92.42| 94.09] 93.53| 94.53] 95.81| 96.11| 96.64| 97.34| 97.38| 97.39
17 - Anuradhapura 91.30] 91.65| 92.17( 93.23| 94.86| 95.16[ 95.97| 96.54| 96.65| 96.73
18 - Polonnaruwa 91.33] 92.48| 92.85] 94.25| 95.08| 95.45[ 95.98| 96.95| 97.11] 97.20
19 - Badulla 93.38| 94.63] 94.83| 95.44| 96.04| 96.32 97..29| 97.46| 97.55| 97.54
20 - Moneragala 91.33] 91.78] 92.81| 94.16| 95.13] 95.99 96.49| 97.44| 97.50| 97.54
21 - Ratnapura 94.02] 94.48| 94.80( 95.75| 96.76| 97.14 97.26] 97.49| 97.50] 97.51
22 - Kegalle 93.87| 94.77] 94.65( 95.75| 96.20| 96.48 97.22| 97.47| 97.56] 97.62

Total 93.86] 94.79] 94.93 95.87| 96.51| 96.76( 97.28| 97.74| 97.79| 97.82
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Mote 19

The increase of electors compared to the previous year in the revision of the
electoral registers 2010 - 2022 and the percentage of increase

Year No. of Electors C(')::;Z?ZZ itrc]) ?;iitsg;r Percentage of increase
2010 14,222,290 -93,127 -0.65%
2011 14,268,064 45,774 0.32%
2012 14,451,264 183,200 1.27%
2013 14,752,168 300,904 2.04%
2014 15,044,490 292,322 1.98%
2015 15,421,205 376,715 2.50%
2016 15,611,970 190,765 1.23%
2017 15,760,867 148,897 0.95%
2018 15,992,096 231,229 1.46%
2019 16,263,885 271,789 1.69%
2020 16,436,059 172,174 1.04%
2021 16,575,646 139,587 0.84%
2022 16,692,397 116,751 0.70%

* Note - With the implementation of the Registration of Electors (Amendment) Act No. 22 of 2021,
the electors have been counted for the 8 months from 01.06.2021 to 31.01.2022 for the 2022 electoral
register. Accordingly, the percentage of actual increase should be considered as 1.05%.
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Note 20

Comparative Note of Number of Members of Parliament to be elected for
each Electoral District 2013 - 2022

Electoral District

Name and Date of Gazette Notification
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Note 21

Numerical notes related to additional supplementary electoral register certified

on 31.08.2022

No. in the Number of Number of Total number
District supplementar Claims and Claims qnd of registered
y list late reguests Late Claims votes
received Allowed

Colombo 4,859 964 891 5,750
Gampaha 12,431 669 609 13,040
Kalutara 4,895 0 0 4,895
Kandy 9,775 169 161 9,936
Matale 3,576 154 148 3,724
Nuwara Eliya 4,415 133 113 4,528
Galle 7,016 389 359 7,375
Matara 6,818 127 87 6,905
Hambantota 3,685 534 360 4,045
Jaffna 7,128 548 516 7,644
Vanni 3,079 1,235 388 3,467
Batticaloa 6,073 15 11 6,084
Digamadulla 5,567 0 0 5,567
Trincomalee 3,143 0 0 3,143
Kurunegala 14,288 198 164 14,452
Puttalam 5,589 187 94 5,683
Anuradhapura 8,545 0 0 8,545
Polonnaruwa 3,554 201 185 3,739
Badulla 4,764 249 194 4,958
Moneragala 3,941 15 5 3,946
Ratnapura 8,285 1432 1416 9,701
Kegalle 5,298 172 112 5,410
Total 136,724 7,391 5,813 142,537

Note - No objection has been raised to any name mentioned in the supplementary lists or to any
name mentioned in the claim lists.
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Note 23

Numerical notes related to supplementary electoral register 2022 (1) certified on

08.11.2022
No. in the Number of Number of Total number
District supplementary claims and late| - Claims a_nd of registered
list requ_ests Late Claims votes
received Allowed

Colombo 672 2,958 2,818 3,490
Gampaha 2,547 3,537 3,349 5,896
Kalutara 1,383 2,187 2,081 3,464
Kandy 2,747 2,447 2,324 5,071
Matale 965 654 631 1,596
Nuwara Eliya 1,042 867 852 1,894
Galle 1,651 1,595 1,540 3,191
Matara 1,621 1,111 1,072 2,693
Hambantota 1,376 1,069 1,033 2,409
Jaffna 2,526 886 851 3,377
Vanni 841 760 562 1,403
Batticaloa 1,923 444 432 2,355
Digamadulla 2,242 471 418 2,660
Trincomalee 839 90 82 921
Kurunegala 2,571 3,269 2,824 5,395
Puttalam 1,132 628 608 1,740
Anuradhapura 2,293 704 688 2,981
Polonnaruwa 823 614 603 1,426
Badulla 1,414 1,407 1,348 2,762
Moneragala 1,100 419 414 1,514
Ratnapura 2,337 2,168 2,042 4,379
Kegalle 1,128 1,027 987 2,115
Total 35,173 29,312 27,559 62,732

Note - No objection has been raised to any name mentioned in the supplementary lists or to any name

mentioned in the claim lists.
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Note 25

Numerical notes related to supplementary electoral register 2022 (2) certified on

15.11.2022
_ No. in the Numper of Number of | Total number of
District supplementar claims . .
: : Claims Allowed| registered votes
y list received

Colombo 603 2,312 2,265 2,868
Gampaha 2,493 525 473 2,966
Kalutara 1,622 1,936 1,885 3,507
Kandy 2,815 1,732 1,664 4,479
Matale 1,031 310 299 1,330
Nuwara Eliya 986 767 752 1,738
Galle 1,841 1,456 1,426 3,267
Matara 1,723 786 771 2,494
Hambantota 1,593 510 501 2,094
Jaffna 3,222 580 564 3,786
Vanni 986 506 343 1,329
Batticaloa 2,081 348 326 2,407
Digamadulla 2,317 90 82 2,399
Trincomalee 916 39 30 946
Kurunegala 2,681 2,220 2,101 4,782
Puttalam 1,357 186 171 1,528
Anuradhapura 2,389 738 728 3,117
Polonnaruwa 998 456 451 1,449
Badulla 1,394 1,128 1,109 2,503
Moneragala 1,098 421 416 1,514
Ratnapura 2,501 1,586 1,505 4,006
Kegalle 1,127 597 576 1,703
Total 37,774 19,229 18,438 56,212

Note - No objection has been raised to any name mentioned in the supplementary lists or to any name
mentioned in the claim lists.
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Note 27
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Note 28

Details About the Circulars Issued in Relation to the Local Authorities Elections 2023

Seri .
al !Z)ate of | Circula Division File no. details
issued I no.
No.
Local Commencement of
1 2022.10.07 | 01 Authorities | LAE/2023/34 | preliminary work for local
' authorities elections
Local Preparation of electoral
. LAE/202 : .
2 2022.11.14 | 02 Authorities 2023/ register at local authority
. @w¢
level
Local Preparation of polling
. LAE/2023/ . :
3 2022.11.29 | 03 Authorities o stations and electoral register
% at local authority level
Information | EC/ITB/01/02 Computerization of
2022.11.30 | 04 Technolo P Institutions for Processing of
gy Postal Vote List.
Local Preparation of electoral
. LAE/2023/ : .
4 2022.12.06 | 05 Authorities register at local authority
. @a¢
level
Coding of institutions to
Local facilitate identification of
OCa . .
LAE/2023/ postal vote certification
2022.12.13 | 06 iti .

S. Authorities @0¢ officers to act on postal vote
applications and postal vote
insurance packets
Obtaining necessary

LAE/202 information for facilitatin
2022.12.12 | 07 Local 2023/ o ng
6. o ®@0¢, and coordinating election
Authorities activities
Local Preparation of polling
Authorities stations and electoral register
S| 20221129 | 08 LAE/2023/ at local authority level
. CX&xte
PE-LAE/PDNW, W/O,
PE=LAE/PDW
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Local Authorities Elections
L ocal Ordinance (Chapter 262) -
oca P
Certification of Electoral
2022.12.14 iti LAE/202 . .
8. 0 09 Authorities /2023/08 Registers and Preparation of
Polling Station Lists.
LAE/08/F1,
Ballot Paper Requirement
LAE/2023/11/F1,
9. 2022.12.17 | 10 Local N LAE/2023/11 LAE/2023/11/F2,
Authorities LAE/2023/11/F3,
Local Marking voters with
10, | 20221220 |11 Authorities LAR/2023/11 indelible ink
Notification of preliminary
preparations regarding
nominations,
Authorities LAE/2023/02/F3,
Pledge/Taking Oath and
Signing
Collection of information of
. EC/ADM/EL/ . i .
12, 2022.12.23 | 13 Admin 2020/ST publl_c service officials for
election purposes
TRILAE/CIR/ Provision of government
13 2022.12.22 | 14 Transport 2023 vehicles to be used for island
wide polling duties
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Note 29

Documents, Forms, Envelopes, Journals, Instruction Books and Other Documents Given To the

Government Press for Printing

Seria | Application/F | Name Language Number of
I No. | orm No copies
required
01 90.9.0¢/m.8. | Request to be considered as a | Sinhala 600,000
1 postal voter i
Tamil 70,000
English 20,000
02 &0.2.01./2.8.2 | Form of Declaration of Identity | Sinhala 750,000
Tamil 175,000
English 40,000
03 LAE/2023/09/ | Appointment of agents for |In all three 80,000
F3 issuing postal ballots languages
04 LAE/2023/09/ | Notice of issuing postal ballots | In all three 80,000
F4 languages
05 LAE/2023/09/ | Appointment of agents for | In all three 30,000
F5 postal ballot marking station languages
06 LAE/2023/09/ | Appointment of agents to be | In all three 80,000
F6 present at the office of the | languages
Certifying Officer at the time of
marking of postal votes.
07 SHE 000635 Code of Conduct for the | Bilingual 1,500
Assistant Returning Officer in
charge of issuing postal ballot
papers
08 CSD/HQI/74/0 | Responsibility and Role of | Sinhala 17,000
9 Certifying Officer in relation to i
marking of postal ballots Tamil 5,000
09 SHE 000605 Instructions to guide Heads of | Sinhala 17,000
Institutions and  Certifying i
Officers on the procedure for | 1aMil 5,000
postal voting in polls English 2500
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10 SHE 000603 Code of Conduct for Postal | Sinhala 15,000
Ballot Certifying Officers i
Tamil 3,500
11 ©0.8.01./m2.8.3 | Form of Declaration of Secrecy | In all three | 300,000
languages
12 LBE -1A Nomination Papers 150
13 LBE 1B(S) Nomination Papers 8,250
14 LBE 1B(M) Nomination Papers 12,250
15 LBE 1B(L) Nomination Papers 6,250
16 LBE 41 Objection to nominations 20,000
17 Appointment | Gazette Notification No. 23 100
of  Returning | ii/26 dated 21.12.2022
Officers
(Sinhala/Tamil
/English)
18 Appointment Gazette notification No. 23 ii/27 100

of  Assistant
Returning
Officers
(Sinhala/Tamil
/English)

dated 21.12.2022
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Note 30

Electoral Law Reform Proposals submitted to the Parliament by the Special Parliamentary

Select Committee on Electoral Law Reforms

Composition of participants Number | District where | Date
the workshop
was held
01. | Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/ | 167 Hambantota 22.08.2022

Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

02. | Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/ | 162 Trincomalee 08.09.2022

Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

03. | Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/ | 169 Polonnaruwa 09.09.2022

Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

04. | Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/ | 90 Kalutara 14.09.2022

Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students, Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

05. | Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/ | 88 Matara 16.09.2022

Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

06. | Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/ | 97 Jaffna 20.09.2022

Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students, Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community
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07.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

87

Kilinochchi

21.09.2022

08.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

61

Mannar

22.09.2022

09.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

111

Ratnapura

11.10.2022

10.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

72

Kegalle

14.10.2022

11.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

111

Galle

18.10.2022

12.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students, Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

96

Kurunegala

22.09.2022

13.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

76

Matale

21.10.2022
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14.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

77

Badulla

27.10.2022

15.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

109

Moneragala

28.10.2022

16.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

82

Kandy

01.11.2022

17.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

85

Nuwara Eliya

02.11.2022

18.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

103

Batticaloa

10.11.2022

19.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students, Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

93

Ampara

11.11.2022

20.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

121

Vavuniya

21.11.2022
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21.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

100

Anuradhapura

22.11.2022

22.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

81

Puttalam

13.12.2022

23.

Civil Organizations, Election
Observation Organizations,
representatives of Youth/ Women/
Disabled Organizations, Government
Officials, Journalists, School Students,
Technology  Students,  Fishermen/
Farmers/ Workers Community

97

Gampaha

14.12.2022
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Note 31

Information on Workshops Conducted on Election Dispute Resolutions

Participants Venue of the Workshop Date

01. | Officers in police divisions in | District Secretariat Office, | 05.01.2022
Nuwara Eliya District Nuwara Eliya.

02. | Officers of the police divisions in | River Side Hotel, Badulla. | 06.01.2022
Badulla District

03. | Officers in police divisions in | District Secretariat, | 12.01.2022
Moneragala district Moneragala.

04. | Officers in police divisions in | Divisional Secretariat, | 13.01.2022
Ampara District Ampara.

05. | Officers in police divisions in | District Secretariat, | 20.01.2022
Vavuniya, Mannar and Mullaitivu | Vavuniya.
Districts

06. | Officers in the Police Division in | Cresten Park Hotel, | 21.01.2022
Anuradhapura, Polonnaruwa | Anuradhapura.
Districts

07. | Officers of the Police Division in | Sunny Fish Hotel & |26.01.2022
Batticaloa District Resort, Batticaloa.

08. | Officers in police divisions in | District Secretariat, | 27.01.2022
Trincomalee District Trincomalee.

09. | Officers in police divisions in | Auditorium of the New | 17.02.2022
Matale District District Secretariat, Matale.

10. | Officers in police divisions in | Ratnasiri Wickramanayake | 18.02.2022
Kandy District National Training Center,

Hanthana.

11. | Officers in police divisions in | Kethumathee Hotel & | 14.03.2022
Ratnapura and Kegalle Districts Banquet, Ratnapura

12. | Officers in police divisions in | Isura  Reception  hall, | 22.03.2022
Puttalam District Puttalam.

13. | Officers in police divisions in | Blue Sky Grand Hotel, | 23.03.2022
Kurunegala District Kurunegala.

14. | Officers in police divisions in Galle | Wakwella Management | 29.03.2022
District Training Institute, Galle.

15. | Officers in police divisions in | Jayasinghe City Center, | 24.08.2022
Gampaha District Naiwala, Gampaha.
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Note 32
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Training from 01.01.2022 to 31.12.2022

Note 33

Name of the Training and Participants

Number of Trained
Officers / Employees

Program Duration

Provisions

The nature of the
program and the place
/manner of it

Output / Knowledge
gained

Training on Annual Board of Survey
(Tamil Medium)

Tamil media officials participating in the
annual Board of Survey

38

13.01.2022

Provisions for
Training

Vavuniya District
Secretariat

Training on Annual Board of Survey
(Sinhala Medium 1)

Sinhala media officials participating in the
annual Board of Survey

35

18.01.2022

Provisions for
Training

Hantana Ratnasiri
Wickramanayake Training
Centre, Kandy

Training on Annual Board of Survey
(Sinhala Medium 2)

Sinhala media officials participating in the
annual Board of Survey

38

19.01.2022

Provisions for
Training

Sarvodaya Training Centre

Office Procedures and Establishment
Code

All Management Service Officers,
Development Assistants and Documentation
Assistants at Head Office

68

07.04.2022

Provisions for
Training

Head Office

BRIDGE Training
Mr.K.D.A.Nishantha
Mrs.T.Swarna
Mrs.D.L.S.Deepika
Mr.0.V.A.V.Karunaratna
Mr.S.J.Stalin
Mrs.S.K.Abeyrathne
Mr.R.H.K.Ranasinghe
Mr.H.D.N.Sampath Fernando
Mrs.W.C.K.Silva (A.O)
Mr.K.A.L.S. Kalugampitiya
Mr. W.G. Dayalan
Mr.K.Vimalaruban
Mr.A.M.K.S.Attanayake
Mr.R.M.H.B.Rathnayake
Mr.S.A.N.D.Praveena

Mr.S.L.R.Jayanayake
Mr.S.A.N.D.Praveena

Mr. K.Mugunthan
Miss.Piyumi Artigala
Mr.K.H.M.S.T.Kasthurisinghe

19

26.05.2022 -
27.05.2022

Resource persons of
IFES Institute

Cinnamon Hotel

Residential Training Workshop on
Local Authorities Elections

Staff Officers at Head Office and all
Districts

From 26.06.2022 to
29.06.2022

Resource persons of
IFES Institute

Green Hills Hotel

Training in maintenance of
government vehicles

Mr. K.C. Kumarathunga

19.07.2022

Provisions for
Training

Online

Two-day training on IT innovations
and cyber security

Mrs. D.R.K.D.K.K. Ratnayake

31

25 and 26.08.2022

Resource persons of
IFES Institute

Colombo Radisson Hotel

Payment of third installment of MBA
in Information Technology
postgraduate course

Mrs. D.R.K.D.K.K. Ratnayake

22.08.2022

Provisions for
Training

University of Kelaniya

10

Acquisition of language proficiency

Mrs. A.N.N. Nuzrath
Mrs. A.A. Anandi
Mrs. T. Suwarna

22.08.2022

Provisions for
Training

National Institute of
Language Education and
Training

11

Tamil language training course

Officials with language requirements in the
head office and the Colombo District and
City Elections Office

46

04.10.2022

Provisions for
Training

Head Office
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Procurement related to election
process

Mr. W.K. Krisantha, Mr. P. Kamalkanth,
Mr. M.N. Dilruk, Mr. M.A.G.M. Dayanath,
Mr. S.M.A.B. Samarakoon, Mr. D.M.N.S.
Dissanayake, Mr. W.V.C.S. Bandara, Mr.
A.M.U. Rashindra, Mr. D.P. Subasingha,
Mr. H.A. Ajith Kumara, Mr. K.
Kokulavasan, Mr. E. Puvirasalingam, Mr. K.
Laxman, Mr. I. Vimalkanth, Mr. B.
Manoharan, Mr. S. Revadan, Mr.
J.J.B.Dinesh, Mr. |. Benigretian, Mr.
W.M.S. Wijesundara, Mr. J.S.
Bandaranaike, Mr. H.M.S.B. Hunukatella,
Mr. H.N.N. Perera, Mr. R M.N.M.
Ariyaratne, Mr. Sumith Asanka Ratnayake,
Mr. K.R. Gnanendram, Mr. S.N.H.T.
Lakruwan, Mr. K.W.P. Madhuranga

36

17 and 18.10.2022

Resource persons of
IFES Institute

Colombo Radisson Hotel

13

Payment of first installment of
Masters in Public Administration and
Management postgraduate course

Mr. H.D.N.S. Fernando

Mrs. W.A. Kaumadi

Mr.J. Jenniton

Mrs. A.N.N. Nuzrath

Mr. Kasun Srinath Attanayake

06.12.2022

Provisions for
Training

University of Colombo
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Annexure 01

G0 GIMATa e doddod o0 G

The Gazete of the Demoeratc Socialis Republic of Sri Lanka

EXTRAORDINARY

oz 2266/53 - 2022 ool ®w 10 (B @wedeBsic - 2022.02.10
No. 2266/53 - THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2022

(Published by Authority)

PART I : SECTION (I) — GENERAL

Government Notifications

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

Order under Article 98 (8)

BY virtue of the powers vested in the Election Commission under paragraph (8) of Article 98 of the Constitution of the
Democratic Soclialist Republic of Sri Lanka, the Election Commission does by this Order certify that -

The number set out in Column II of the Schedule hereto be the number of members which each electoral district

specified in the corresponding entry in Column I of the schedule hereto is entitled to return by virtue of the proclamation
under Article 97 and under Article 98.

NIMAL G. PUNCHIHEWA, S. B. DIWARATHNE, M. M. MOHAMED,
Chairman, Member, Member,
Election Commission. Election Commission. Election Commission.
K. P. P. PATHIRANA, P. S. M. CHARLES,

Member, Member,

Election Commission. Election Commission.

Elections Commission,
Rajagiriya,
10th February 2022.

1A- G 36073 — 50 (02/2022)
This Gazette Extraordinary can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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2A [ @008 : () edees - & o2 YHNFd @B Emoded 48 Dens ved smw - 2022.02.10
Part I: Sec. (I) - GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA - 10.02.2022

SCHEDULE

Column I Column II
Name of Electoral District Number of Members which such
Electoral District is entitled to return

01 - Colombo 19
02 - Gampaha 18
03 - Kalutara 10
04 - Mahanuwara 12
05 - Matale 5
06 - Nuwara Eliya 8
07 - Galle 9
08 - Matara 7
09 - Hambantota 7
10 - Jaffna 7
11 - Vanni 6
12 - Batticaloa 5
13 - Digamadulla 7
14 - Trincomalee 4

—_
(9]

15 - Kurunegala
16 - Puttalam

17 - Anuradhapura
18 - Polonnaruwa
19 - Badulla

20 - Moneragala
21 - Ratnapura 1
22 - Kegalle

O = N O W O

196

EOG 02 - 0492

PRINTED AT THE DEPARTMENT OF GOVERNMENT PRINTING, SRI LANKA.
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Annexure 02
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The Gazette of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

EXTRAORDINARY

oz 2312/31 - 2022 @¢e®T ®es 28 DB @¢ogo - 2022.12.28
No. 2312/31 - WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 28, 2022

(Published by Authority)
PART I : SECTION (I) — GENERAL
Government Notifications
PARLIAMENTARY ELECTIONS ACT, No. 1 OF 1981
Recognized Political Parties
IN terms of Provisions of Section 7 of the Parliamentary Elections Act, No. 1 of 1981, it is hereby notified that the names of

the political parties that are considered as recognized political parties for the purpose of elections are given in the following
Schedule.

NIMAL G. PUNCHIHEWA, S. B. DIWARATNE, M. M. MOHAMED,
Chairman, Member, Member,
Election Commission. Election Commission. Election Commission.
K. P. P. PATHIRANA, P. S. M. CHARLES,
Member, Member,
Election Commission. Election Commission.

At Election Commission,

Sarana Mawatha,

Rajagiriya,

on this 21st day of December, 2022.

1A- G 38486 - 51 (12/2022)
This Gazette Extraordinary can be downloaded from www.documents.gov.lk
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ParT I: SEC. (I) - GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA -28.12.2022

SCHEDULE

Political parties recognized by the Election Commission

1. Abhila Ilankai Thamil Congress
2. Akhila Ilankai Tamil Mahasabha
3. Ape Janabala Pakshaya
4. New Independent Front
5. Arunalu Peoples Alliance
6. All Ceylon Makkal Congress
7. Ilankai Tamil Arasu Kadchi
8. Eros Democratic Front
9. Eelavar Democratic Front
10. Eelam People's Democratic Party
11. United Congress Party
12.  United People's Freedom Alliance
13. United Republican Front
14. United National Freedom Front
15. United National Party
16. United National Alliance
17. Democratic Unity Alliance
18. United People's Party
19. United Left Front
20. United Socialist Party
21. United Peace Alliance
22. Up-Country People's Front
23. Workers National Front
24. People's Liberation Front
25. Peoples Servant's Party
26. Democratic Tamil National Alliance
27. Jana Setha Peramuna
28. National Congress
29. Jathika Jana Balawegaya
30. National Peoples Party
31. National Freedom Front
32. National Democratic Front
33. Jathika Sangwardhena Peramuna
34. National Unity Alliance
35. Tamizh Makkal Kootanii
36. Thamil Makkal Thesiya Kuttani
37. Thamil Makkal Viduthalai Pulikal
38. Tamil Progressive Alliance
39. Social Democratic Party of Tamils
40. Devana Parapura
41. Deshapremi Eksath Jathika Pakshaya
42. Desha Vimukthi Janatha Pakshaya
43. Tamil Eelam Liberation Organization
44. Tamil United Liberation Front
45. New Democratic Front
46. New Democratic Marxit Leninist Party
47. Nawa Lanka Nidahas Pakshaya
48. Nawa Sama Samaja Party
49. Nawa Sihala Urumaya
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PArT I : SEC. (I) - GAZETTE EXTRAORDINARY OF THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA -28.12.2022

SCHEDULE (Contd.)
Political parties recognized by the Election Commission (Contd.)

50. Pivithuru Hela Urumaya

51. Puravesi Peramuna

52. Frontline Socialist Party

53. People's Alliance

54. Democratic United National Front
55. Democratic People Congress

56. Democratic Peoples Front

57. Democratic People's Liberation Front
58. Democratic National Alliance

59. Democratic Party

60. Democratic Left Front

61. Peoples Interllectual Front

62. Maubima Janatha Pakshaya

63. Mahajana Eksath Peramuna

64. National Front for Good Governance
65. Ceylon Worker's Congress (P.Wing)
66. Lanka Janatha Party

67. Lanka Sama Samaja Party

68. The Liberal Democratic Party

69. Sri Lanka Labour Party

70. Sri Lanka Freedom Party

71. Sri Lanka Podujana Peramuna

72. Sri Lanka Mahajana Pakshaya

73. Sri Lanka Muslim Congress

74. Communist Party of Sri Lanka

75. Social Democratic Party of Sri Lanka
76. Socialist Party of Sri Lanka

77. Samagi Jana Balawegaya

78. Samaththuva Kadchi

79. Samabima Party

80. Socialist Alliance

81. Socialist Peoples Forum

82. Socialist Equality Party

83. Sinhaladeepa Jathika Peramuna

Recognized Political Parties which has issues in post of Secretary
84 Eksath Lanka Podujana Pakshaya
85 Eksath Lanka Maha Saba Party
86 Sri Lanka Progressive Front

EOG 12 - 0405

PRINTED AT THE DEPARTMENT OF GOVERNMENT PRINTING, SRI LANKA.
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